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Royal Mail Holdmgs plc

Directors’ Report

The Directors present the Group Annual Report and Financial Statements of Royal Mail Holdings plc (the Company) These financiat statements
relate to the 53 weeks ended 31 March 2013 (2012 52 weeks ended 25 March 2012}

Principal activities

The Group provides a nationwide and international distributton service prinapally of mails and parcels The Group also provides access to a wide
range of financal and retal services through its network of Post Office branches across the United Kingdom

Royal Mail Holdings plc 1s directly owned by HM Government [t 15 the ultimate parent company of Royal Mail Group Limited {Royal Mail Group)
and Post Office Limited {Post Office} The Group primanly operates in the United Kingdom ncluding a number of subsidiaries associates and a
joint venture It also has a presence in most European countries through its subsidiary General Logistics Systems Further details on the principal
subsidiaries are provided in note 27 to the financial statements

The Company is a non-trading helding company

Review of the business and future developments

On 1 Aprd 2012 Post Office Limited was transferred from under the ownership of Royal Mail Group Limited to becorme a direct subsidiary of
Royal Mad Heldings plc This will facilitate operational independence and appropriate governance for both businesses

Qverall group revenue for the 53 weeks to 31 March 2013 was £101 billion which 1s an mcrease of 6 0 per cent when compared to the prior
year (52 weeks to 25 March 2012 £9 5 bdlion) Operating profit before exceptional items for the 53 weeks to 31 March 2013 rose by 65 2 per
cent to £730 milion compared to the prior year (52 weeks to 25 March 2012 £442 million)

Exceptional items representing the ongoing costs of the Group s medernisation programme and alse items of @ non-recurring nature decreased
by 1 2 per cent to £320 million (2012 £324 million}

A summary of performance by the core business unmits s shown below

External revenue Operating profit*

Business unit performance 2013 2012 2013 2012

£&m £m £m £m
UK Parcels International & Letters {UKPIL) 7,739 7164 526 252
General Logistics Systems (GLS) 1,498 1562 101 128
Other 5 5 9 1
Royal Mail Group 9.242 8731 636 381
Post Office Limited 861 801 9% 61
Group total 10,103 9532 730 442

*Operating profit 15 defined as profit before exceptronal items

A more detailed analysis of the trading performance of Royal Mail Group and Post Office Limited 1s given in their respective financial statements
for the 53 weeks to 31 March 2013

An analysis of the operating exceptional items 1s shown in note 6

The Group has continued to make addressing and strengthening the Group s cash position a major prionty The Group recorded a cash mflow of
£28 million for the 53 weeks to 31 March 2013 {52 weeks to 25 March 2012 £196 million)

Dividends
The Directors do not recornmend a dividend (2012 nil dvidend)
Events after the Balance Sheet Date

In accordance with the funding agreement with HM Government announced on 27 October 2010 for which State Aid approval was received on
28 March 2012 Post Office Limited receved £415m of funding on 2 April 2013

On 21 June 2013 Royal Mail Group and Post Qffice Limited launched a consultation with members of the Royal Mail Penston Plan en a proposal
to change the terms of the Plan The consultaticn will conclude on 25 August 2013 following which hoth companies wilt consider the feedback
received before making their fina! decision and then communicate the outcome to colleagues shortly afterwards




Royal Mail Holdings plc

Directors’ Report (continued)
GoIng concern

In making their assessment of gaing concern the Directors of Royal Mail Holdings ple have reviewed the assessments made by the Directors of its
two principal subsidiaries Royal Mail Group Limited and Past Office Limited The outcomes of these assessments are set out below As a result of
these and also their own findings the Directors of Royal Ma:l Holdings plc believe that the Group will be able to meet its liabilities as they fall due
and that 1t 1s appropriate to prepare the financial statemnents on a going concem basis

Royal Mail Group Lirnited

For the year ended 25 March 2012 the Directors concluded that in light of the pension solution agreed with HM Government the return to
profitability of the UK Parcels International and Letters business {JXPIL) and positive free cash flow for Royal Mail Group Limited as a whole the
company was a gomg concem

With the continued strong financial performance achieved for the year ended 31 March 2013 a review by the Directors of cash headroom
forecasts include a reasonable but pesswmistic downside scenaro and assurance that the Shareholder will continue to prowde alternative
financing arrangements should this be necessary the Directors have again conctuded that the company 15 a going concern and that it 1s
appropniate to prepare the fmancial statements on this basis

Post Office Limited

Post Office Limited entered into a funding agreament with HM Government on 27 October 2010 State Aid approval for the fundmg for 2012-23
to 2014-15 was received on 28 March 2012 and it was also recognised that the working capital facitity was no longer deemed State Aid Post
Cffice Lirited receved £410m on 2 April 2012 and £415m on 2 April 2013

The Directors are satisfied with the progress made towards modernisation during 2012-13 and that the plans in place and the substantial
investment secured wil enable Post Office Limsted to continue to modernise and to secure its future

Therefore the Directors believe that Post Office Limited will be able to meet its labilities as they fall due n the foreseeable future and therefora
that it 1s appropriate to prepare the financial statements an this basis

Group strategy and Key Performance Indicators (KPls)

A passion for customers remains at the centre of everything that the Group does The Group s strategc vision 1s to become an efficient werd class
operator of the mails umiversal service in the UK, & true customer champion in the UK and European parcels markets and sustain and grow the
Post Office both commercally and in 1its vital social and community roles

As noted above Royal Mail Holdings plc 1s a non-trading holding company The two Directors Donald Bryden and Alice Perkins are respective
Chairman of the Company s two directly owned subsidianes Royal Mait Group Limited and Post Office Limited

As a result they are directly mnvolved in the setting the objectives and strategy of Royal Mail Group Lirmited and Post Office Limited and for
monitormg performance and risk management The Directors consider a number of financial and non-financial KPls in respect of thewr
maonitormg of performance of the Group

The key financal KPIs are
Revenue

External revenue for the year ended 31 March 2013 increased by 6 per cent to £10103m (2012 £9532m) as a result of increases in parcel
volumes and price increases introduced during the year The Group 15 successfully harmessing the benefits of the new regulatory framework

Operating profit before exceptional items

Operating profit before exceptional items for the year ended 31 March 2013 increased by 65 2% to £730m (2012 £324m) as a result of the price
mcreases implemented following the introduction of the new regulatory framework This has been supported by tight controls which have
ensured costs Increased in line with inflation

Cash flow

The Group has recorded a cash inflow for the year of £28m compared to £196m for 2012 following the repayment of external borrowings of
£686 million during the year (2012 £1 mullign)

A detailed analysis of the KPIs of Royal Mal Group Limited and Post Office Limited 1s given in their respective financial staternents for the 53
weeks to 31 March 2013

Overall the Directors are satisfied with the Group s progress aganst sts KPls for the year



Directors’ Report {continued)

Principal nsks and uncertainties

Royal Mail Holdings plc

The Group uses a business-wide framework for the identification assessment {reatment rmonitormg and reporting of nisk The process helps
support busmess objectives by linking into business siraiegy identifying and reacting to ernerging nsks and develeping cost effectve solutions for
the management of nsk The Royal Mail Group Limited and Post Office Limited Audit and Risk Committees (ARC) report to their respective board
and meet quarterly to monitor and review the effectiveness of the nsk management processes and the control environment

The following Group-level nsks have been identified and are actively bemg rmanaged to support the long-term sustamability of the Group The
impact of some of these nisks could be imparrment to the value of the Group s brands - Royal Mat GLS Parcelforce Worldwide and Post Office
which are some of the most well known and trusted brands i the UK The potential impact of these risks and the polices in place to mitigate this
impact are prowvided in detail in the finanoat statements of Royal Mail Group Lirited and Post Office Limited

Principal risks - Royal Mail Group Limited

Principal nsk

Changes in customer preferences

Customer bebaviours are constantly evolving
and competition 5 increasing  Consequentty
there s a risk that our product offerings and
the customer experience we provide may not
meet changing customer needs

In addition customer or compebitor actions
could trigger significant volumes of physical
maill bypassing Royal Mal downtradmg to
lower revenue products and acceleration in e-
substitution Postal operators and other thsrd
parties may set up discrete direct delivery
networks in urban areas

Economic environment

Historically there has been a correlation
between the state of the UK economy and the
level of maill volumes There 15 a risk that the
continuation of flat or adverse economic
conditions could impact our abibity to stay
profitable ether by reducing volumes or by
encouraging down trading to lower revenue
products Our price rises though necessary
exacerbate this nsk Additionally the Group has
significant European operations and current
uncertainty and econormic weakness i the
Eurozone could impact these businesses

Prepanng for attracting external capital

We need to be n a position to implement the
provisions of the Postal Serwices Act 2011
including reacing a sufficent state of
readiness to obtam access to external capital
As a recpent of State A granted to HM
Government, HM Government must submit
annual reports to the European Commission
about progress with our restructuring

Mitigation

= We have placed significant focus on the key growth area of parcels cluding investment m
Parcelforce Worldwide and enhancing the core network to accommodate growing customer
traffic

e We have mtroduced mitiatives to simplfy products improve our product delivery and the
customer expenence to drive loyalty and advocacy

¢ We have held discussions with key stakeholders and continue to do so on the nsk to the
Unwversal Service if direct delivery competition 15 allowed to develop unchecked

« We are focusmg product development and sales resource on growth opportunities with the
greatest potential for added value especially outside e-substitutable markets

+« We launched a new media busmess MarketReach to mprove our direct marketing mail
proposition for customers and

* We remodel/optimise the operational network as necessary to cater for a different mix of
products local direct delivery and to reduce costs

e We contmually review our costs to find areas where we can mitigate the impacts of any
downtum

¢ We have conducted a programme of organmsational restructuring to reduce managernal
headcount i line with changmg busmess volumes and monitor closely our progress in
realising these savings

s We have robust econometric maodels in place to provide early warnings of changes to overall
volumes and the profile of letter and parcel volumes We contmually review and upgrade
these models to anticipate better the impact of pnce nses and reflect the increasingly
deregulated market and

+ W targeted price increases for 2012-13 tanffs to ensure prices remained afferdable

e« We successfully completed separation of Post Office Limited and Royal Mail Group on 1 Apnil
2012

=« We transferred the majonty of the labiities and assets of the Royal Mail Pension Plan to
HM Government on 1 Apnl 2012

» We work with HM Gavernment i its preparation of an annual repert to the European
Commissian about progress with our restructurmg HM Government submitted a first report
in October 2012 We are investing in our processes and data readmess to help ensure we
are in a position to meet any due diligence demands relating to any potential transaction

* A Director of Investor Relations has been appointed

» We are engaging and mvolving the Shareholder to ensure it has a fult understanding of our
plan and business model and

¢ We have had continuing ongoing dialogue and consultatien with Ofcorn during the year to
minimise the nsk that the regulatory regime will be a barmer to our mitiatives to drive
profitability and to maximise commercial freedom within the new Ofcom framework




Directors’ Report (continued)
Princtpal risks and uncertamties (continued)

Principal nisk

Business modernisation

We are undergomg a signficant extensive
modermisation programme to mprove our
equipment and techmical and IT mfrastructure
and operating models The success of the
business  strategy relles on  successful
extraction of benefits from the programme
whilst maintaining key business outcomes such
as Quality of Service levels

Risks inherent i the postal industry

The postal industry has specific characteristics
that bnng particular  operational  and
commercial risks Operations are at nsk of
disruption by for example adverse weather
health and safety incidents industrial action
operational change terrorism {ether as a
target or a condut) or falure of crtical
suppbiers  In  addition to the changing
regutatory regme in the postal sector thers s
a risk of non-compliance with a wide range of
legal and regulatory requirements such as
procurement and cosmpetition law Bribery Act
and financal services and data security
regulations  The legal and regulatory
environment m which the Group operates Is
subject to change

Principal risks - Post Office Limited

Prnncipal nsk

Changes in customer preferences

There 15 decline m the traditional Post Office
ncome  streams  as  customer  preferences
change New income streams may fail to grow
sufficiently to exceed the losses from traditionat
products in decline

Funding

As set out m note 2 Post Dffice Limited has a
funding agreement with HM Government untl
31 March 2015 with a working capital faclity
until 31 March 2016 There 5 a nsk that
funding beyond these dates cannot be
negotiated or that state aid approval s not
granted in time

Royal Mail Holdings plc

Mitigation

* We track progress and outcomes of all rewisions to operational practice on a weekly basis to
ensure completion to time and the sharing of good practice and lessons learmed Quality of
Service 15 a fundamental constderation prior to any change

»  We have increased focus on delvery moderisation and performance with the new
Operational organisation

«  We follow an agreed framewaork for all transformation revisions

*  We are closely managing and monitoring the IT transformation project

» We are embedding our Werld Class Mail init@ative inte delivery operations to ensure that
operational change 15 backed up by culturat change

« We are dosely monitoning our progress in realising role reductions in bne with operational
thanges and

* We are engaging closely with our unions and colleagues with regard to the rationale behind
and our progress with regard to meodernisation

* We have Business Contmuity Plans i place which are awned maintained and reviewed by
the Operations Executive

» We have a communication mode! in place to keep customers appraised of potential or actual
service impacts

+ We continue to engage constructively with Ofcom

s Dur Regulation team works with key HM Government and EU stakeholders on future
legislative changes

* We are embedding a structured approach to relationship management for our key suppliers
including providing visibility of contract performance throughout the busmess

» We have engaged with trade unions at all levels across the business and there 15 constant
visibility of 1ssues action taken and potential nsks

« The Risk Management Committee conducts formal ongoing environmental scanning to
identify emerging risks and episodes and root causes of incidents that have impacted other
businesses and might have implications for Royal Mail Group

« Comprehensive complance programmes are in place addressing Maill Integnty Aviation
Security and control of Dangerous Goods and

s The Royal Mal Group compliance team works with business units to mamntam an overafl
comptiance framework (covering postal regulation compettion law and Bribery Act
compliance) policy and processes awareness raismg and traming programmes

Mrugation

= We have introduced new services in growth areas and contmue to refine and develop these
product offermgs There are detalled plans n place to delver the growth trajectory and
progress against these plans 1s monitored rigorously

* Planning 15 well underway for the future period beyond 2015 and discussions wall
commence shortly with HM Government



Directors’ Report {continued)
Principal risks and uncertainties {contimued)

Prinapal nsk

Business transformation programmes

There are a significant number of change
programmes underway to modermise the Post
Office and enable its processes to operate
independently from those of Royal Mail Group
These nclude the network, Crown and T
transformation programmes The success of
the Post Office strateqic plan depends upan the
successful realisation of the benefits from these
programmes

Engagement nsk

The support and active engagement with our
people and subpostmasters durmg this
significant time of change 1s key to the
successful delivery of cur strategy Withdrawal
or lack of support from our employees or
subpostmasters i the network could cause
delays in the Post Office transformation
programmes and Lt our ability to meet
business objectves

Regulatory & compliance

There 15 a nsk of non-compliance with the
changing regulatory envircnment We operate
under an extensive regulatory environment
including areas such as financial and postal
services procurement competition law and
data security regulations

Busimess continuity
The Post office has particular operational risks
around disruption of its services

This includes adverse weather conditions
industrial action systems breakdown or {failure
of a critical supplier

Royal Mail Holdings plc

Mibigation

We have detailed plans m place to manage the transformation and ensure it 15 delivered
within budget and on time Delivery s tracked monthly by a Transformatien Board made up
of Executive Committee members which prowdes direction and oversight over the
pregrammes delivery

We mamtamm a flud and comprehensive engagement prograrmme with unions staff and
subpostmasters  These mclude regular meetings with the National Federation of
Subpostmasters (NFSP) the Communication Workers Union (CWU} and Unite semior
management briefings to staff and subpostmasters and events toc engage our people in our
vision and strategy

We have a people plan aimed at addressing staff motwvation and skill needs This includes
development of new leadership and reward framewarks and mcreased focus on recrutment
and traming

Qur legal and compliance team works closely with the relevant business owners In
identifymg new requrements and monitoring compliance agamst existing ones
The Risk and Compliance Committee monitors key risks and our actions to mitigate them

Disaster recovery and business continuity plans are under continuous development and
review in ling with business change This ncludes ¢contingency planning and traming in the
event of disruption such as industnal action ar IT failure

Key suppliers ability to continue to meet the Pest Office s requirements 1s closely monitored

Financtal risk management objectives and polictes

The Company s principal finanaal imstrurments the main risks arising from these and the agreed implemented policies for managmg each of these
nisks are discussed n more detall in notes 19 20 and 21 to the financial statements

Pension Plans

Royal Mail Group Limited and Past Office Limited contribute to the Royal Mail Pension Plan (RMPP) and the Royal Mail Senior Executives Pension
Plan (RMSEPP) (both defined benefit schemes albeit on a career average) and to the Roval Mail Defined Contnibutien Plan (RMDCP) (defined
contribution scheme}

The assets and liabilities of the defined benefit plans as measured under accountmng standards are reported as a net penston surplus i the
Group s batance sheet at 25 March 2013 (2012 net pension deficit)

Both defined benefit schemes are now closed to new members RMSEPP was closed to future accruals on 31 December 2012 New employees
are offered membership of the RMDCP

On 1 Apnl 20112 after the granting of State Aid by the European Commission on 21 March 2012 almost all of tha pension liabilities and pension
assets of the main pension scheme RMPP built up until 31 March 2012 were transferred to HM Government On this date the RMPP was also
sectionabised with Royal Mail Group Limited and Post Office Limited each responsible for their own sections im future This arrangerment left the
RMPP fully funded on an actuanal basis in respect of histonic labilities at that date




Royal Mail Holdings plc

Directors’ Report {continued)
Government, Regulation and Legislation

n April 2012 Ofcom implemented a new regulatory framework This recognises that the Universal Service provider must be able to earn a
reasonable rate of commercial return Royal Mail Group 1s harnessing the benefits of the new framework to secure its fimancial future Direct price
controls now affect less than 10 per cent of Royal Mzl revenues

Ofcam has recently concluded its Review of Postal Users Needs n which it ruled out the need for any major changes to the Universal Service We
also welcomed recent clarfication by the Regulator of the circumstances m which it would be minded to intervene m direct delery competition in
order to protect the viabiity of the one-price-goes-anywhere service

Political and charitahle contributsons

During the year the Group made chantable contributions amounting to £3m (2012 £5m) No political contributions were made in the year (2012
£nil)

Research and development
Research and development expenditure during the year amounted te £nil {2012 Emil}
Policy on the payment of suppliers

The poticy of the Company and its principal operating subsidianes 15 to use their purchasing power fairly Payment terms are agreed i advance
for all majer contracts For lower value transactions the standard payment terms of the supplier apply It i1s the Company s policy to abide with the
agreed terms The Company and its principal operating subsidianes in the UK have sought to comply with the Department for Busmess
Innovation and Skills {BiS) better Payment Practice Code Copres of this can be obtamed from BIS As the Company 1s a non-operating company
the creditor days are zero The creditor days of the operating subsidianies are set out in their respective Arnual Report and Financial Statements

Land and buildings

The net book value of the Group s land and bulldings based upon a histonc cost accounting pohicy and excluding fit-out 1s £735m (2012 £685m)
fn the epinion of the Directors the aggregate market value of the Groups land and buldings exceeds this net book value by £382m {2012
£436m}

Directors and their interests

The following have served as Directors of the Company during the 53 weeks ended 31 March 2013 and up to the date of approval of these
financial statements

Appointed Resigned
Donald Brydon {Chairman)
Alice Perkins 1 Apnl 2012
Moya Greene 1 Apnl 2012
Matthew Lester 1 April 2012
Paula Vennells 1 April 2012
Mark Higson 1 Apnl 2012
David Currie 1 Apnl 2012
MNick Horler 1 Apnl 2012
Cath Keers 1 Aprl 20712
Pautt Murray 1 Apni 2012
Orna Ni-Chionna 1 Apnit 2012
Les Owen 1 Apnl 2012

No Director has a beneficial interest in the share capital of the Company
Audit information

The Directors confirm that so far as they are aware there is no relevant audit mformation of which the auditor 15 unaware and that each Director
has taken all reasonable steps to make themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the auditor 1s aware of that
mformation




Rayal Mail Holdings plc

Directors’ Report (continued)
Quabfying third party mdemnity provisions for Directors

A partial qualifying third party mdemnity provision (as defined in section 234 of the Companies Act 2006} was and remams in force for the benefit
of all the Directors of the Company and former Directors who held office during the year The imdemnity 1s granted under article 116 of the
Company s Articles of Assoctation The indemnity 1s partial in that t does not allow the Company to cover the costs of an unsuccessful defence of a
third party clam

Employee involvement

The Group places great importance on ensuring that its employees are engaged in the strategrc direction of the Group Detalled analysis about the
policies and procedures that are in place in both Royal Mail Group Limited and Post Office Limited are set out in therr respective financial
statements for the 53 weeks ended 31 March 2013

Disabled employees

The Group s policy 1s to give full consideration to applications for employment from disabled persons Employees who become disabled whilst
employed recewe full support through the provision of traiming and special equipment to facilitate continued employment where practicable The
Group provides training career development and promotien to disabled employees wherever appropriate

Auditor

The auditor 1s deemed to be reappointed under section 487 (2} of the Companies Act 2006

By Order of the Board

\

Jon Millidge
Secretary
London




Royal Mall Holdings plc

Independent Auditor’s Report to the members of Royal Mail Holdings pic

We have audited the Group financial statements of Royal Mail Holdings ple for the year ended 31 March 2013 which comprise the Conselidated
income statement the Ceonsolidated statement of comprehensive mcome the Consolidated statement of changes 1n equity the Consolidated
statement of cash flows the Consolidated balance sheet and the related notes 1 to 28 The financial reporting framewaork that has heen applied n
their preparation Is applicable law and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs} as adopted by the Eurcpean Union

This report 1s made solely to the Comnpany s members as a body n accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 Qur audit
work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company s members those matiers we are required to state to them in an auditors
report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the
Company and the Company s members as a body for our audit work, for this report, or far the opmions we have formed

Respective responsibilittes of Directors and auditors

As explamed more fully n the Directors responsibilities staternent set out an page 10 the Directors are responsible for the preparation of the
Group financzl statements and for bemg satisfied that they give a true and fair view Qur responsibitity is to audit and express an opinion on the
Group financial statements in accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those standards require
us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board s Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the finandal statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the finanoial statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance that
the financial staterments are free from matenial misstatement whether caused by fraud or error This includes an assessment of whether the
accounting policies are appropriate to the Group s circumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed the reasonableness
of significant accounting estimates made by the Directors and the overall presentation of the financial statements In addition we read all the
financial and nen-financial nfermation in the Annual Report and Financal Statements to identify matenal inconsistencies with the audited
financial statements If we become aware of any apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report

Opimnion on financial statements

In our opinion the Group finanoat statements
« gve a true and fair view of the state of the Group s affairs as at 31 March 2013 and of its profit for the year then ended
» have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union and
* have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006

Opinion on other matter prescnbed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opimion the information given m the Directors Report for the financial year for which the Group financial statements are prepared 1s
consistent with the Group finanaal staternents

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have ncthing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you if In our opinion
s certain disclosures of Directors remuneration specified by law are not made or
» we have not received all the mformation and explanations we require for our audit

Other matter

We have reported separately on the parent company finanoal statements of Royal Mail Holdings plc for the year ended 31 March 2013

/\/_, wrg
Richard Wilson (Senior statuto Hitor)
for and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP

Statutory Auditor
London

24 (Tu.l@ 7013

ccp

1



Royal Mail Holdings plc

Statement of Directors’ responsibilities in respect of the Group financial statements

The Directors are responsible for prepaning the Directors Report and the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations
Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year Under that law the Directors have elected to prepare
the Group financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adepted by the European Unton Under
company law the Directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and far view of the state of
affairs of the Group and of the profit or loss of the Group for that period In preparing these financial statements the Oiwectors are required to

e select suitable accounting pebeies and then apply them consistently

« make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent

+  state whether the applicable IFRSs as adopted by the European Union have been followed subject to any material departures disclosed
and explammed by the financial statements and

- prepare the financial statements on the gomg concemn basis unless t 15 mappropnate to presume that the Company will continue in
busmess

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting recards that are sufficient to show and explain the Company s transactions and
disclose with reascnable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements
comply with the Companies Act 2006 They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence for taking reasonable
steps for the prevention and detectron of fraud and aother irregulanties

Ao

Donald Brydon

pete Ll S\-"\ Lovy

10




Royal Mall Holdings plc

Consotidated income statement
For the 53 weeks ended 31 March 2013 and 52 weeks ended 25 March 2012

203 2012
Notes fm £m
Turnover 9,893 G352
Network Subsidy Payment for Post Dffice Limited 210 180
Revenue 10,103 9632
People costs 4 (5.885) (5 657)
Distribution and conveyance costs (1,787) {1 758)
Other operating costs 5 (1,733) (1707)
Share of post tax profit from joint venture and assocates 12 32 32
Operating profit hefore exceptional items 730 442
Operating exceptional items ) (320) (324)
Operating profit 410 118
Profit on disposal of property plant and equipment 18 157
(Loss)/profit on disposal of business (30) 26
Profit before financing and taxation 398 30
Finance costs 7 (108) (118)
Finance ncome 7 248 54
Net pension interest 24 37 26
Profit before taxation 575 263
Taxation creditf{charge) 8 220 {10)
Profit for the financial year from continuing operations 795 253
Profit attnbutable to
Equity holder of the parent company 79 252
Non-cantrolling interest 4 1
Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
For the B3 weeks ended 31 March 2013 and 52 weeks ended 25 March 2012
2m3 2012
Notes £m Em
Profit for the financal year from continwng operations 795 253
Other comprehensive {expensel/incorme for the period (587) 1585
Translation differences on foreign currency net investments (s} (47}
Actuarial {losses)/gams on defined benefit schemes 24 {201} 1544
IFRIC 14 adjustment relating to pensions 24 (8} -
Losses on cash flow hedges deferred into eguity 22 (1} (4)
tasses/{gans) on cash flow hedges released from eguity to mcome 22 2 {15)
Gains on cash flow hedges released from equity to the carrying amount of non-
financial assets 22 (1) 3)
{Losses)/gams on financial assets deferred into equity 13 2 133
Gams on financal assets released from equity to moome (217} -
Taxation on items taken directly to equity 8 (154) (23)
Total comprehensive iIncome for the period 208 1838
Total comprehensive income for the pernod attributable to
Equity holder of the parent company 204 1846
Non-controllmg interest &4 (8)
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Royal Mail Holdings plc

Consolidated statement of cash flows
For the 53 weeks ended 31 March 2013 and 52 weeks ended 25 March 2012

2013 2012
Noles £m £m

Cash flow from operating activities
Operating profit before exceptional items 730 442

Adjustment for

Depreciation and amortisation 5 280 302
Share of post tax profit from jomt venture and associates 12 (32) (32)
EBITDA before exceptional items 978 712
Working capital movements 207 -
Decrease In inventories 6 -
Increase in recervables (11) {156}
Increase in payables 141 110
(Increase)/decrease m client recevables (202) 20
Increase in client payables 196 18
Net increase im dervative assets {15) (&)
(Decrease)increase in non-exceptional provisions (8) 14
Difference between pension costs charged im operating profit and pension cash flows (4) (9
Receipt of Government grant 200 -
Cash payments in respect of operating exceptional items {325) {342)
Cash inflow from operations 1,056 361
Income taxation paid (28) (23)
Net cash imflow from operating actvities 1,028 338

Cash flows from investing activities
Drndends recewved from joint venture and associates 12 40 42
Finance income recewed 31 53
Proceeds from sale of property plant and equipment S4 205
Proceeds from sale of associate company 2 -
Proceeds from disposal of business - 37
Purchase of property plant and equipment (424) (306)
Investment in associate (11) -
Acquisition of busimess (3) 2
Purchase of intangible assets (software) (63) {59}
Payment of deferred consideration m respect of prior years acquisitions (3) (1)
Net sale/{purchase) of financial assets investments (non-current) 1,361 (45)
Net purchase of financial assets mvestments (current) (1,226) (30}
Net cash outflow from investing activities {242) (106)
Net cash inflow before finanang actrities 786 232

Cash flows from financing activities
Finance costs paid (53) (73)
Payment of capitat element of obligations under finance lease contracts {77} (52)
Cash recewved on sale and leasebacks 58 88
New loans - 2
Repayment of borrowings {686) (1)
Net cash outflow from financang activities (758) (36}
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 28 196
Effect of exchange rates on cash and cash equivalents - (4}
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 16 1,293 1101
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the peniod 16 1,321 1293
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Royal Mail Holdings plc

Consolidated balance sheet

At 31 March 2013 and 25 March 2012
{Registered number 04074919)

2013 2012
Naotes £m £m
Non-current assets
Property plant and equipment 9 1,931 1825
Leasehold land payment 3 3
Goodwall 10 196 189
Intangible assets {mamly software) 11 139 135
Investments m joint venture and assocates 12 63 92
Financial assets - pension escrow Investments 13 20 1383
- denvatives 2021 3 2
Other recevables 19 -
Retirernent benefit asset net of IFRIC 14 adjustment 24 922 -
Deferred tax assets 8 112 9
3,408 3638
Non-current assets held for sale 2 4
Current assets
Inventories 14 32 38
Trade and other recevables 15 1,344 1251
Income taxation recervable 5 2
Financial assets - derivatives 2021 10 9
- short-term depesits 2021 1,257 31
Cash and cash equivalents 16 1,321 1293
3,969 2624
Total assets 7,379 6266
Current liabilsties
Trade and other payables 17 (2,478) (2 085)
Fmanacal habilittes - interest bearng loans and borrowings 1819 {291) (377
- obligations under finance leases 192021 (82) {90)
- dervatives 192021 {2) (4)
Income taxation payable (16) e
Provisions 23 (138) (138)
{3,007) (2703)
Non-current iabilities
Fmancial labilities  — interest bearing toans and horrewings 1819 (973) [1522)
- obligations under finance leases 192021 (230) (237
~ dervatrves 192021 (1) (1)
Provisions 23 (134) (93)
Retirement benefit obligation — pension definit 24 - (2922)
Other payables (60) (39)
Deferred tax liabilities 8 (23) (18)
(1,421) (4 832)
Total liabilities (4,428) (7535)
Net assets/(liabilities) 2,951 (1269)
Equity
Share capital 25 - -
Share premium 430 430
Retaned earmings 1,176 (1998)
Other reserves 1,341 299
Equity attributable to equity holder of parent company 2,947 {1269)
Non-controlling interest 4 -
Total equity 2,951 (1269)

The financial statements on pages 12 to 59 were approved by the Board of Directors on }{‘.S J,\lo\"s and signed on its behalf by

Donald Bryd
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Royal Mail Holdings plc

Consolidated statement of changes in equity
For the 53 weeks ended 31 March 2013 and 52 weeks ended 25 March 2012

Foraign
Finandial Lurrency Equety Non-
Share Retamed Assuts Translation Hedglng  Escrow Other | holder of controliing Total
premium earnings Reserve Reserve ReseTve  reserve Reserves |the parent interest equity
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
At 26 March 2012 430 (1,998} 166 78 8 - 47 | (1,269} - | 1.269)
Profit for the period - 791 - - - - - 791 4 795
Other comprehensive -
{expense)f/income for the period - (418) (166) {5 2 - (587} - (587
Transfer to Escrow reserve (note
25) - {1256 - - - 1256 - - - -
Pension deficit transfer to HM
Government on 1 April 2012 (note
25) - 4012 - - - - - 4012 - 4012
Sale of interest in associate - 45 - - - - (45) - - -
At 31 March 2013 430 1,176 - 73 10 1,256 2 2,947 4 2,951
Foregn
Financial Currency Equity Nan-
Share Retaned Assets  Translation Hedgmg Dther holder of  controllng Total
premum earnings Reserve Reserve Reserve Reserves | the parent nterest equity
fm £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
At 28 March 2011 430 (3803) 64 125 22 47 |(3115) 8 | 3107
Profit for the period - 252 - - - - 252 1 253
Qther comprehensive mcome/f{expense)
for the period ~ 1544 102 (47) (14) - | 1585 - | 1585
Dwvadend from non-controlling interest - 9 - - - - 9 {9 -
At 25 March 2012 430 (1998} 166 78 3 47 | (1269) - | (1269)

A description of the nature and application of the reserves in the above tables 15 ncluded in note 25
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Royal Mail Holdings plc

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

1 Authorisation of financial statements and statement of compliance with IFRSs

The Groups finanaal staterments for the year ended 31 March 2013 were authorised for 1ssue by the Board on 24 July 2013 and the balance
sheet was signed on behalf of the Directors {as at 31 March 2013) by Donald Brydon

The Group s financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the
European Unien and as they apply to the financal statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2013

2 Accounting policies

Basis of preparation and accounting

The Group comprises Royal Mad Holdings plc (the Company) which is wholly owned by HM Government and its subsidiaries The Company 15
mcorporated n the United Kingdem and the financial statements are produced in accerdance with the Companies Act 2006 {the Act) and
applicable IFRSs The UK 1s the Group s country of domicrle

The Group consolidated financial statements are presented 1n Sterling and all values are rounded to the nearest £m except where otherwise
indicated These consolidated financiat statements have heen prepared on a historic cost basis except for pension assets derwatwve financial
instrurments and available for sale financial assets which have been measured at far value

Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiary undertakings The firancial statements
of the major subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting year as the Company usmg cansistent accounting policies

All intra-group balances and transactions mcluding unrezlised profits anising from intra-group transactions have been elimmated m full Transfer
prices between business segments are set on a basis of charges reached through negotiation with the respective busimesses

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control 1s obtained by the Group and cease to be consolidated from the date on which
control 1s no longer held by the Group Where the Group ceases to hold control of a subsidiary the consoldated financial statements include the
results for the part of the reporting year duyring which the Group hetd controt

Non-controlling Interest represents the portion of profit/loss gansfiesses and net assets relating to subsidianes that are not attributable to
members of the Company The non-centrolling interest balance i1s presented within equity m the consolidated balance sheet separately from
parent shareholder s equity

Going concern and funding

In making an assessment cn the Groups ability to continue as a going concern the Directors have censidered the respectve going concern
assessments made by the Directors of the Royal Mail Group Limited and Post Office Limited subsidiary companies These are set out in detall
below

In reviewing these assessments the Directors have taken nto account all available information about the future which 1s at least but not lrmited
to twelve months from the date when the financial statements are authorised for 1ssue They have also taken account of the fact that the
Company acts as guarantor for the Royal Mail Group Limited £900m sentor debt faality and £500m other toans facility (see note 18 for further
detalls) and that the escrow reserve and the assets backng the reserve (£1 256m as at 31 March 2013) cannct be used withaut the agreement
of HM Government After careful consideration of all available information the Directors are of the wiew that 1t 1s appropniate that the consolidated
financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis

Royal Mail Group Limited

There are two significant events that the Directors have noted and considered whilst performing their going concern review

{1} Pension transfer to HM Government
On 1 April 2012 after the granting of State Aid by the European Cormmussion to HM Government on 21 March 2012 almost all of the pension
liabitities and pension assets of the Royal Mail Pension Plan (RMPP) built up until 31 March 2012 were transferred to a new HM Gavernment
pension scheme the Royal Mail Statutory Pension Scheme (RMSPS)
This transfer left the RMPP fully funded on an actuarial basis and by using long-term actuanal assumptions agreed at that date it was

predicted that Royal Mail Group Limited would have to make no further defiat cash contributions to RMPP (previously it had made payments
including £272m 1n 2011 and £262m m 2010
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Rayal Mail Holdings plc

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
2 Accounting polictes {continued)
Further details on pensions can be found In note 24

() Avalable terms and borrowings

Note 18 of these financial statements detalls the loan facilities agreed between HM Government and Royal Maill Group Limited This note
confirms that the £500 mdlion Senior Debt Facility (£600 millton term loan £300 million revolver) 1s due to expire m March 2014 At 31
March 2013 and at the date of signing this Annual Report and Financial Statements these faclities had not been used and until their expiry
the Directors can assume that they are avatlable to be used After their expiry they should normally expect that they are not availlable

The Board however has wntten assurance from HM Government that alternative financing on commercial terms would be avallable to replace
these borrowing facilities should a sale transaction not take place and the cash headroom position deteriorated sufficiently to require HM
Government to roll over the existing facilities

Review assumptions

For the current review of going cencern the Directors undertook a review of the companys cash headroom to March 2015 a longer window than
the mimimum requirement under two different scenanps

e A realstic but pessimustic downside case assuming no transactton takes place and placing reliance on the assurance from HM
Government referred to above and

+ A realistic but pessimistic downside case assuming a sale transaction takes place and that as a consequence the existing faclities are
replaced by new faclities

The Directors concluded from their review that under both of the above scenanos sufficient cash headroom exists for the foreseeable future and
accordingly the Royal Mail Group remains a gomg concemn

Post Office Limited
Post Office Limited had net assets at 31 March 2013 (net habilities at 25 March 2012) and has operated at a profit before exceptional items during
2012-13 for the fifth year running

A funding agreement with HM Government was announced on 27 October 2010 which provided for

«  Funding of £410m for 2012-13

e  Funding of £415m for 2013-14

+  Funding of £330m for 2014-15

«  Extension of the existing working capital facility with the Department for Busimess innovation & Skills (BIS) of £1 15bn up to 31 March
2016

State Aid approval for the funding for 2012-13 to 2014-15 was receved on 28 March 2012 and it was also recognised that the working capital
facitity was no longer deemed State Aid £410m was recerved on 2 Apnl 2012 and £415m on 2 April 2013

The investment will take the form of a Government Grant and enable the Group to modermise the branch network and the continuation of the
Network Subsidiary Payment recognises the major socal value that Post Offices provide to commumities New mamn and local branches are
currently being rolled out across the United Kingdom Customers are beginning to benefit fram a much betier retait experience mcluding extended
opening hours This programme Is designed te make the Post Cffice network mare self-sustaming and over time less dependent on direct subsidy
This programme will not mvelve branch closures

The Directors are satisfied with the progress made towards modermisation during 2012-13 and that the plans m place and the substantial
mvestment secured will enable the Group to continue to modernise and to secure its future However they note that the scale of change required
remaims significant so not without risk.

After careful consideration of the plans for the coming years the Directors continue to believe that Post Office Limited will be able to meet its
labilties as they fall due m the foreseeable future and accordingly the Group remams a going concermn
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Royal Mail Holdings plc

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
2 Accounting palicies {continued)
Changes n accounting policy and disclosures

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year The Group adopted the amendment to 1AS 12 Income
Taxes durnng the year although this currently has no impatt on the Group s financial position or performance No oiher new or amendedfrewised
accounting standards were required to be adopted by the Group during the reporting penod

Accounting standards i1ssued but not yet applied

The International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) has issued accounting standards relevant to the Group with an effective date for accounting
periods begmning after the commencement date of the period to which these financial statements relate There have been no new relevant
accounting policies adopted m the year that have a significant impact on the results of the Group The Group has considered the impact of new
accounting standards 1ssued below

Intemnational Accounting Standards LIAS/IFRSS) ' Effective date
IAS 1 Financizl Statements Presentation (Amendment} 1 July 2012
AS 19 Employee Benefits (Amendment) 1 January 2013
IAS 27 Separate Financial Statements (Amendment) 1 January 2014
145 28 Investments in Associates and Jomt Ventures (Amendment) 1 January 2014
IAS 32 Financal Instruments Oisclosure and Presentation (Amendment) 1 January 2014
Annual improvermnents

2009 - 2011

IFRS 7 Offsetting Financial Assets and Financiat Liabilities {Amendment) 1 January 2013
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments Classification and Measurement 1 January 2015
IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements 1 January 2014
IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements 1 January 2014
IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities 1 January 2014
fFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement 1 January 2013
tFRS 10 IFRS 12 and

tAS 27 Investment entities (Amendment) 1 January 2014
1AS 34 IAS 36 Impairment of assets (Amendment) 1 January 2014
IAS 39 IAS 39 Financial Instruments Recognition and Measurement (Amendment) 1 Jjanuary 2014

145 1 Financial Statements Presentation {Amendment}

In June 2011 the IASB ssued amendments to IAS 1 Financial Statement Presentation which are intended to improve and align the presentation
of tems of other comprehensive mcome (QCY This amendment affects presentation only and therefore has no 'mpact cn the Groups financial
position or perfarmance The amendment became effective far the Group on 1 April 2013

1AS 19 Employee Benefits (Amendment)
In June 2011 the JASB issued amendments to |AS 19 Employee Benefits which may result in changes to the net penston cost and may require
addiional discosures retating to pensien assets The key impact will be to replace the separate assumptions for expected return on plan assets
and discounting of scheme labilibes and replace them with one single discount rate for the net surplus or deficit This net mterest mcome/cost will
be measured based on the plans discount rate Asset returns greater or less than the accounting discount rate will be recognised in the
Staternent of Comprehensive Income {SOCI)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments Classification and Measurement

{IFRS 9 as 1ssued reflects the first phase of the 1ASBs work on the replacement of IAS 39 and applies to dassification and measurement of
financial assets as defined m fAS 39 In subsequent phases the IASB will address classification and measurement of financial Labiliues hedge
accounting and derecogniion The completion of this project is expected in 2011 The adaptien of the first phase of IFRS ¢ mandatory for the
Group commencing 1 April 2015 will have an effect on the dassification and measurement of the Groups financial assets The Group wall
quantify the effect in conjunction with the other phases when issued to present a comprehenswve picture

IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements

IFRS 10 builds on existing principles by identifying the concept of centrot as the determining factar in whether an entity should be inctuded within
the consolidated financal statements of the parent company The changes mtroduced by IFRS 10 will require management to exerase significant
Jjudgement to determine which entities are controlled and therefore are required to he consolidated by a parent compared with the requirements
that were in |AS 27 The standard will be adopted with a commencement date of 1 April 2014 and 15 not expected to have a significant impact on
the financial position or performance of the Group
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Royal Mail Holdings plc

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
2 Accounting policies (continued)

1AS 27 {(Amended) Separate Financial Statements
This amendment 1s due to be adopted by the Group with a commencement date of 1 Apnl 2014 and 15 not expected to have a significant impact on
the financial position or performance of the group

IFRS 11 Jomnt Arrangements

IFRS 11 replaces IAS 31 Interests in Jont Ventures and provides for a more reabstic reflection of joint arrangements by focusing on the rights
and obligations of the arrangement rather than s legat form {as 1s currently the case) The standard addresses inconsistencies i the reporting of
jomt arrangements by reguinng a single method to account for mterests in jointly controlled entities The standard will be adopted with a
commencement date of 1 April 2014 and 1s not expected to have a significant impact on the fimancial position or performance of the Group

IFRS 12 Disclosures of Interests in Qther Entities

IFRS 12 15 a new and comprehensive standard cn disclosure requirements for all forms on interests i other entities ncluding subsidaries jont
arrangements and unconsolidated structured entities A number of new disclosures are reguired Cne of the most significant changes introduced
by IFRS 12 1s that an entity 1s now required to disclose the judgements made to determine whether i controls another entity The standard will
be adopted with a commencement date of 1 April 2014 and 15 not expected to have a significant impact on the financial position or performance
of the Group

IFRS 13 Farr Value Measurement

IFRS 13 establishes a single framework for measuning far value where that i1s required by other standards The standard applies to both financial
and non-financial items measured at farr value The standard will be adopted with a commencement date of 1 April 2013 and is not expected to
have a significant impact on the financial position or performance of the Group

IAS 28 (Amended) Investments in Assocates and Joint Ventures
Thts amendment i1s due to be adepted by the Group with a commencement date of 1 April 2014 and 15 not expected to have a significant mpact
on the finanoial posiion or performance of the group

IAS 32 (Amended) Financial Instruments Disclosure and Presentation

This amendment to IAS 32 seeks to clanify rather than to change the off-setting requirements previously set out m 1AS 32 The changes clanfy
+« the meanmmg of currently has a legally enforceable night of set-off and
s that some gross settlement systems may be considered equivalent to net settlement

The amendment Is effective for the Group with a commencement date of 1 April 2014 and must be applied retrospectively

IFRS 7 {Amended) Financial Instruments Disclosures

This amendment miroduces disclosures intended to enable users of financial staternents to evaluate the effect or potential effect of netting
arrangements on an entity s financial positon The Amendment mtroduces both qualitative and quantitative disclosures and has been adopted by
the Group with a cormnmencement date of 1 April 2013 and 1s not expected to have a significant impact on the disclosures in the financial
statements

IAS 36 Impairment of assets (Amendment}

In May 2013 the IASB i1ssued amendments to IAS 36 Impairment of assets which are mtended to reduce the crcumstances m which the
recoverable amount of assets or cash-generating units 15 required to be disclosed clarify the disclosures required and to mtroduce an exphot
requirement to disclose the discount rate used m determining impasrment {or reversals) where recaverable amount (based on fair vatue tess costs
of disposal} 1s determined using a present value technique This amendment affects presentation anly and therefore has no impact on the
Group s financial position or performance The amendment becormnes effective for the Group on 1 Apnl 2014

IAS 39 Financial Instruments Recognition and Measurement {Amendment)

In June 2013 the IASB 1ssued amendments to IAS 35 Financial Instruments Recognition and Measurement which are intended to make it clear
that there 15 no need te discontinue hedge accounting if a hedging derwative 1s novated provided certain cntena are met A novation mdicates an
event where the crigimal parties to a derivative agree that ane or more clearing counterparties replace their onginal counterparty to become the
new counterparty to each of the parties In order to apply the amendments and continue hedge accounting novation to a central counterparty
(CCP) must happen as a consequence of laws ar regulations or the introduction of laws or regulatiens The amendment becomes effective for the
Group on 1 Apnl 2014 and s not expected te have a significant impact on the financial position or performance of the Group
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Royal Mail Holdings plc

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
2 Accounting policies (continued)

Key sources of estimation, uncertainty and accounting judgements

The preparation of the Group s consoldated financial statements requires management to make judgements estimates and assurnptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the reporting date However uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that require a matenal adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or hability affected in future periods

The key sources of uncertainty that have a significant nisk of causing matenal adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and Labilities within
the next finanoal year relate to the measurement of deferred tax and provisions

Deferred tax

Assessment of the deferred tax asset reguires an estimation of future proftability Such estimation 15 mherently uncertain in a market subject to
various competitive pressures Should estimates of future profitability change in future years the amount of deferred tax recognised will also
change accordingly The carrying values of the deferred tax assets and liabilities are included within note 8

Provisions

Due to the nature of provisions a significant part of their determination 1s based upon estimates and/or judgements concerning the future
Restructuring provisions including for redundancy and property costs are derved based upon the most recent busmess plan for direct
expenditure where plans are sufficently detaled and appropriate communecation to those affected has been undertaken This includes the
expected number of employees impacted rate of compensation per employee rental costs and expected penod of propertres remaming vacant
and dilapidation costs The industrial diseases claims provision is based on the best mformation available as at the year end including mdependent
expert advice

Deferred income

The Group recognises advance customer payments on its balance sheet {see note 17) relating to stamps and meter credits purchased by
customers but not used at the balance sheet date The valuation of this deferred income 15 based on a number of different estimation and
sampling methods usmg external specialist resource as appropriate the results of which are reviewed by management in order to make a
judgement of the carryimg amount of the accrual

Investments i joint venture and assoctates

The Groups investments in its joint venture and associates are accounted for under the equity method of accounting Under the equity method
the mvestment s carmed i the balance sheet at cost plus post-acquisition changes m the Groups share of the net assets of the jomt
venturefassociates less any imparment in value The mcome statement reflects the Groups share of post tax prefits from the joint venturef
associates

Any goodwill arising on acquisition of an associate representing the excess of the cost of the investment compared to the Group s share of the net
far value of the identifiable assets Labilities and contingent Liabilities acquired 1s induded in the carrying amount and not amortised

Revenue
Revenue reported in the mcome statement 1s net of value added tax and compnses Turnover and the Network Subsidy Payment Turmaver
principally relates to the rendering of services as follows

UK Parcels International & Letters

Account revenue is derved from specfic contracts and recognised when the delivery of an item 1s complete Prepaid revenue mainly relating to
stamp and meter income 1s recognised when the sale 1s made adjusted to reflect a value of stamp and meter credits held but net used by the
customer

General Logistics Systems
Revenue 1s derived from specific contracts and 1s recognised at the time of delivery

Post Office Limited
Revenue is recognised at the time that Government financial mails and telecoms services are provided

The Network Subsidy Payment
Government grant revenue s Tecogrised to match the related costs of providing the network of public post offices that the Secretary of State for
Business [nnovatien and Skills considers appropriate and which would otherwise not be provided
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Royal Mail Holdings plc

Notes to the consolidated financial statements {(continued)
2 Accounting policies {continued)

Distribution and conveyance

Distribution and conveyance costs relate to non-peaple costs incurred in transporting and delivering mail These include conveyance by rail road
sea and ar together with costs imcurred by international mail carmers and Parcelforce Worldwide delvery operators and GLS These costs are
disclosed separately on the face of the mcome statement

Operating exceptional items

QOperating exceptional items are items of mcome and expenditure ansing from the operations of the business which due to the nature of the
events giing rise to them require separate presentation on the face of the income statement to allow a better understanding of financial
performance i the year m companson to prior years

Operating profit

Operating profit is the profit ansing from the normal rtecurring operations of the business and after charging operating exceptsonal items defined
above [t excludes the non-cperating exceptional items for profit or loss on dssposal of businesses and profit or loss on disposal of property plant
and equipment These tems are not part of the normal recurring operations of the busimess but are material so are prasented separately on the
face of the income statement to allow a better understanding of financial performance in the year in comparnson to prior years

Goodwill

Business combinations on or after 29 March 2004 are accounted for under IFRS 3 Business Combimations using the purchase method Any
excess of the cost of the business combination over the Groups mterest in the net far vatue of the identifiable assets babilities and contingent
liabilities at the date of acquisiton 1s recognised in the balance sheet as goodwill and is not amortised

After intial recognition goodwill 15 stated at cost less any accurnulated imparrment losses Goodwill ansing frem business combmations 1s
reviewed for imparment annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances ndicate that the carmying value may be impared

An impairment loss 1s recognised in the income statement for the amount by which the carmying value of the asset {or cash generating unit)
exceeds its recoverable amount which s the higher of an asset s net realisable value and its value m use For the purpose of such imparment
reviews goodwill 1s allocated to the relevant cash generating units

Goaodwill arising on the acquisition of equity accounted entties 15 included m the cost of those entibies and therefore not reported in the balance
sheet as goodwill

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired as part of a business cambimnation are capitalised separately frem goodwill if the fair value can be measured reliably on
nitial recogmition Intangrble assets acquired separately or development costs that meet the cnteria to be capitalised are initially recognised at cost
and are assessed to have either a finte or indefinite useful life Those with a finite Iife are amortised over therr useful life and those with an
indefinite Uife are reviewed for impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances mdicate that the carrying value may
be impawred An impairment loss 1s recognised m the income statement for the amount by which the carrying value of the asset exceeds its
recoverable amount which 1s the higher of an assets net realisable value and its value in use

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite lives 15 charged annually to the income statement on a straight-line basis as follows

Customer listings 3to 4 years
Software 1 to 6 years
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Royal Mall Holdings plc
Notes to the consolidated financial statements {continued)

2 Accounting policies (continued)

Property, plant and equpment

Property plant and equipment 1s recognised at cost, including directly attributable costs i bringing the asset into warking condition for its
intended use Depreciation of property plant and equipment 15 provided on a straight-line basis by reference to net book vatue and to the
remaining useful economic lives of assets and therr estimated residual values The useful lives and residual values are reviewed annually and
adjustments where applicable are made on a prospective basis The lives assigned to major categories of property plant and equipment are

Land and buildings

Freehold land Not depreciated

Freshold buldings Up to 50 years

Leasehold bulldings The sharter of the penod of the lease 50 years or the estimated remaining useful ife
Plant and machinery 3-15 years
Motor vehicles and trailers 2-12 years
Fixtures and equipment 2-15 years

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell Non-current
assets are classified as held for sale if their carmying amounts will be recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than through
continuing use This condition 15 regarded as met anly when the sale 1s highly probable and the asset 1s avallable for immediate sale in its present
condition Management must be committed to the sale which should be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year
from the date of classification

Impairment reviews

Unless otherwise disclosed in these accounting policies assets are reviewed for imparment f events or changes in arcumstances indicate that the
carrying value may be impared The Greup assesses at each reporting date whether such indications exist Where appropriate an impairment
loss 15 recogwsed i the ncome statement for the amount by which the carrying value of the asset {or cash gemerating unit) exceeds its
recoverable amount which is the higher of an assets net realisable value and its value in use

Leases

Finance leases where substantially all the risks and rewards inaidental to ownership of the leased itern have passed to the Group are capitalised
at the mception of the lease with a corresponding tability recogrised for the fair value of the leased item or if lower at the present value of the
minimurm lease payments Lease payments are apportioned between the finance charges and capital element of the lease liability to achieve a
constant rate of interest on the remaming balarce of the liability Capitalised leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the estimated
useful life of the asset and the lease term

Leases where substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset are retained by the lessor are classified as operating leases and
rentals are charged to the income statement over the lease term The aggregate benefit of incentives are recognised as a reduction of rental
expense over the lease term on a straight-line basis

A leasehold land payment is an upfrent payment to acquire a leng-term leasehold interest m land This payment 1s stated at cost and 1s amortised
on a siraight-line basis over the penod of the lease

Trade recevables
Trade recewables are recognised and carried at oniginal mvoice amount tess an allowance for any non-collectable amounts An estimate for
doubtful debts s made when cellection of the full amount 1s no longer probable Bad debts are wnitten off when identified

Financial mstruments

Financal assets within the scope of 1AS 39 Financial Instruments Recognition and Measurement are dassfied as financial assets at fair value
through the income statement (held for trading) held to maturity investments [oans and recewvables or avalable for sale financial assets as
appropriate Financal labilities within the scope of IAS 39 are dassified as either financial liabilities at fair value through the income staternent or
financial habilities measured at amortised cost

The Group determines the classfication of its financial instruments at mital recognibion and re-evaluates ths designation at each finangal year

end When finanaial imstruments are recognised mitially they are measured at far value being the transaction price plus In the case of financial
mstrumments not at far value through the income statement  any directly attributable transactional costs
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2 Accounting polictes (continued)

Loans and recenables

Non-dernvative financiat assets with fixed or determimnable payments that are not quoted on an active market, do not qualify as tradmg assets and
have nct been designated as either fair value through the income statement or avallable for sale are carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method if the time value of money 1s significant Gamns and losses are recogrised m the income statement when the loans and
receivables are derecognised or impaired as well as through the armortisation process

Avanable for sale financial assets

Available for sale financial assets are non-denvatve financial assets that are designated as such or are not classified in any of the three
preceding categories After mitial recognition interest 1s taken to the income statement using the effective interest rate methad and the assets are
measured at fair value with gans or losses being recognised as a separate compenent of equity until the investment 1s derecogrised or until the
investment :5 deemed to be impaired at which tirme the cumulative gain or loss previously reported in equity 15 included in the incerne staterment

Financial habilities at far value through the income statement (held for trading)
Dernatives labilities are dassified as hefd for trading unless they are designated as hedging instruments They are carmed in the balance sheet at
fair value with gains or losses recognised 1n the income statement

Financial habiities measured at amortised cost

All non-derwvatwve finanoal liabilities are classified as financial biablites measured at amortised cost Non-dernvative financial liabilities are imitsally
recognised at the fair value of the consideration recewved less directly attnibutable 1ssue costs After inibal recognition non-dervative financial
liabititses are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method Gains and losses are recognised in the income
statement when the liabilities are derecognised or impaired as well as through the amortisation process

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at bank and in hand and short-term deposits (cash equvalents) with an ongmal
matunty date of three months or less [n addition the Group uses Money Market funds as a readily availlable source of cash and these funds are
also categorised as cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash equivalents as defined above net of bank
overdrafts

Cash equivalents are classified as loans and recevables financial mstruments

Financial assets - pension escrow investments
Financial assets — pension escrow mvestments comprise ¢ash at bank conventional gilt edged securities mdex-lnked glt edged securities and
Treasury bills and money rmarket fund investments

Canventional gilt edged secunties mdex-linked gilt edged securnties and Treasury bills are classified as availlable for sale financial instruments on
the basis that they are quoted investments that are not held for trading and may be disposed of prior to maturity

Financial assets - other investments
Financial assets - other vestments comprise short-term deposits (other imvestments) with Government, local government or banks with an
origmal maturity of three months or mere Short-term deposits are classified as loans and recevables financal imstruments

Financial habilities - interest-bearing loans and borrowings
All loans and borrowings are dassified as financal babilities measured at amortised cost

Financial liabilities - oblLigations under finance leases
All obligations under finance leases are classified as financial labilives measured at amortised cost

Derivative financial instruments
The Group uses dervative nstruments such as foreign currency contracts m order to manage the nisk profile of any underlying risk exposure of
the Group in line with the Group s treasury management policies Such derivative financial instruments are initially stated at far value

Far the purpose of hedge accounting hedges are classified as cash flow hedges where they hedge exposure to vaniabidity m cash flows that 1s
either attributable to a particular nisk associated with a recognsed asset or liability or a highly probable forecast transaction

23




Royal Mait Holdings plc

Notes to the consolidated financial statements {continued)
2 Accounting policies {continued)

In relation to cash flow hedges to hedge the foreign exchange or commodity price nisk of firm commitments that meet the conditions for hedge
accounting the portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument that is determined to relate to an effectve hedge 15 recognised directly in
egquity and the meffective portion 15 recogmised in the income statement

When the hedged firm commitment results in the recogmition of a non-financial asset or non-financial bability then at the time the asset or
liability 15 recogrised the associated gains or losses that had previously been recognised in equity are included in the initial measurement of the
acquisition cost or other carrying amount of the asset or liability For all other cash flow hedges the gains or losses that are recognised i equity
are transferred to the income statement in the same year m which the hedged firm cammitrment affects the net profitioss for example when the
hedged transaction actually occurs

For dernvatves that do not qualify for hedge accounting any gains or losses ansing from changes i farr value are taken directly to the income
staternent in the period

Hedge accounting 15 discontmued when the hedgmg instrument expires or 1s sold terminated or exercised or no longer qualifies for hedge
accounting At that pomt any cumulative gain or loss on the hedging instrument recogrised i equity s kept in equity untl the forecast
transaction occurs If a hedged transaction 1s no longer expected to occur the net cumulative gain or loss recogmised in equity 1s transferred to
the ncome statement for the year

Fair value measurement of financtal instruments

The farr value of quated nvestments (including conventional gilt edged securties ndex-hinked gt edged securities and Treasury hills} 15
determined by reference to bid prices at the close of business on the balance sheet date Hence the conventional gilt edged secunties mdex-
linked gilt edged secunities and Treasury bilts are withn Level 1 of the fasr value hierarchy as defined within IFRS 7

Where there Is no active market farr value 1 determined using valuation techrgues These mclude using recent arm s length market transactions
reference to the current market value of another mstrument which 1s substantially the same and discounted cash flow analysis and pricing
models Specifically in the absence of quoted market pnices denvatives are valued by using guoted forward prices for the underlying
commodity/currency and discounted usmg guoted interest rates {both as at the close of busimess on the balance sheet date}) Hence dermative
assets and liablities are within Level 2 of the fair value herarchy as defined within IFRS 7

for the purposes of disclosing the fair value of nvestments held at amortised cost in the balance sheet in the absence of quoted market prices
fair values are calculated by discounting the future cash flows of the fmancial instrument using quoted eguivalent interest rates as at close of
business on the balance sheet date

Income tax and deferred tax
The charge for current taxation 1s based on the results for the year as adjusted for items that are non-assessable or disaffowed It 1s calculated
using rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognised for all taxable and deductible temporary differences and unused tax assets and fosses
except

« nmtial recognition of goodwill,
«  the inital recognition of an asset or labilty in a transaction that 1s not a business combination and at the time of the transaction
affects neither the accounting prefit nor taxable profit and toss
» taxable temperary differences associated with imvestments in subsidianes associates and mterest i jomt ventures where the timing of
the reversal of the temporary difference can be controlled and it 15 probable that the temporary difference will not reverse m the
foreseeable future and
»  deferred tax assets are recognised only ta the extent that it 1s probable that taxable profit will be avadable agamst which they can be
utilised
The carrymg amount of deferred tax assets 15 reviewed at each balance sheet date and increased or veduced to the extent that 1t 1s probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be avallable to allow them to be utlised

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the penad when the tax asset 1s realised or the
liabiity 1s settled based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been substantively enacted at the balance sheet date Deferred tax balances are not

discounted

Current and deferred tax 15 charged or credited directly to equity If it relates to items that are credited or charged directly to equity otherwise it is
recognised 1 the income statement

24




Royal Mail Holdings plc

Notes to the consolidated financial statements {continued)

2 Accounting policies {continued)

Provisions

Provisions are recogmised when the Group has a present obligation {legal or constructive) as a result of a past event it 1s probable that an outflow
of resources will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the abligation If the effect of the time
value of maney 1s material provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at an appropriate pre-tax rate

Pensions and other post-retirement benefits

The pension assets for the defined beneft plans are measured at fair value Liabiliies are measured on an actuanal basis using the projected umit
credit method and discounted at a rate equivalent to the current rate of return on a high quality corperate bond of equivalent currency and term
The resulting defined benefit asset or liabilty 1s presented separately on the face of the balance sheet Full actuarial valuations are carred out at
intervals not normally exceeding three years as determmed by the Trustees and with appropriate updates and accounting adjustments at each
balance sheet date form the basis of the deficit disclosed All members of defined benefit schemes are contracted out of the eamings-related part
of the State pension scheme

For defined benefit schemes the amounts charged to operating profit are the current service costs and any gamns and losses ansing from
settlements curtailments and past service costs The net difference between the nterest costs and the expected return on plan assets 15
recognised as net pension mterest in the income statement Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately m the statement of
comprehensive income Any deferred tax movernent assocated with the actuarnial gams and losses 15 also recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income

For defined contribution plans the Groups contributions are charged to operating profit within people costs m the period to which the
contributions relate Overseas subsidiaries make separate arrangernents for the provision of pensions and other post-retirement benefits

Contingent Liabitities
Contingent habilities are not disclosed if the possibility of losses occurnng 1s considered to be remote

Foreign currenoes
The functional and presentational currency of Royal Mail Holdings plc 15 Sterling (£) The functional curvency of the overseas subsidiartes m
Europe 1s mainly the Euro (€}

The assets and Labilities of foreign operations are translated at the rate of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date The trading results of
foreign operations are translated at the average rates of exchange for the reporting period being a reasonable approximation to the actual
transaction rate The exchange rate differences arising on the translation since the date of transition to IFRSs are taken directly to the Foreign
Currency Translation Reserve in equity

Transactions in foreign currencies are intially recorded in the functional currency by applying the spot exchange rate ruling at the date of the
transaction Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foresgn currencies are retranslated at the functional currency rate of exchange ruling
at the balance sheet date Currently hedge accounting 1s not clamed for any monetary assets and labilities All differences are therefore taken to
the income statement except for differences on monetary assets and Liabilities that form part of the Groups net investment in a foreign
operation These are taken directly to equity until the disposal of the net investment occurs at which time they are recogrised in profit or loss

Non-monetary items that are measured in terrs of histonc cost i a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates as at the dates of
the wmitial transactions Non-monetary items measured at fair value in foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when
the far value 15 determmed

Government grants
Government grants of a revenue nature are credited to the mecome statement and are shown separately to the expenditure to which they relate
Government grants relating to assets are recognised as deferred mcome that is amortised over the useful lfe of the relevant assets
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3 Segment information

The Group s operating segments are organised and managed separately according to the nature of the products and services provided with each
segment representing a business unit that offers different products and serves largely different markets Management monitors the operating
results of Its busmess units separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment Segment
performance 1s evaluated based on operating profitloss There 15 no aggregatien of operating segments

The operating segments compnse operations in both the UK and other parts of Europe the latter being relevant to the GLS business segment
The UK operations include the remaming two operating segments plus the Other segments

Segment revenues have been attributed to the respective countries hased on the location of the customer Transfer prices between the segments
are set on a basis of charges reached through negotiation with the respective busmess units that form part of the segments There are no
differences in the measuremnent of the respective segments profitfioss and the consolidated financial statements prepared under IFRSs The
Group reports its segments in the way it internally manages its business as follows

31 March 2013

Dther

European

UK operations operatigns

UK Parcels, Post General

International Office Logistics
& Letters Limited Other Tetal Systems. Total
£m £m £ £m £m fm
External revenue 773% 861 5! 8605 1498 10,103
Revenue between segments 28 371 158 557 - 557
Total segment revenue 7767 1,232 163 9 162 1,498 10,660
Operating profit before exceptional items 526 94 9 629 101 730
Operating exceptional items (273) - (47) - (320 - (320)
Operating profit 253 47 9 309 101 410
Profit on disposal of property plant and equipment 14 2 - 18 - 18
Loss en disposal of associate - (30) - (30} - (30)
Profit before financing and taxation 269 19 9 2%7 10 398

! The Other segments external revenue comprises £4m (2012 £4m) relsting to the provision of facilibes management services by Remec Limited and £1m (2012 £1m} for bulding enginearmg
sennces provided by NOC 2000 Limited

Finance costs of £108m (2012 £118m) finance income of £248m (2012 £54m) and net pensions interest of £37m (2012 £26m) when adjusting
the profit before finanong and taxation of £398m (2012 £301m) reconcies to the Group proft before taxaton of £575m (2012 £263m)

25 March 2012

Other

European

UK operations operations

UK Parcels. Post General

Internaticnal Office Logstics
& Letters Lrnited Other Total Systems Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
External revenue 7164 801 5 7970 1562 9532
Revenue between segments 25 359 129 513 - 513
Total segment revenue 7189 1140 134 8483 1562 10045
Dperating profit before exceptional items 252 &1 1 314 128 442
Operating exceptional tems (271) (38} {15} (324} - (324)
Operating profit (19) 23 (14) (10) 128 118
Profit on disposal of property plant and equipment 156 1 - 157 - 157
Profit on disposal of asscciate - - 25 25 1 26
Profit before financing and tax 137 24 11 172 129 301
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3 Segment iformatton (continued)

The following amounts are meluded within operating profit before exceptional items

31 March 2013

Other
European
UK operations operations
UK Parcels Post General
International Dtfice Logisues
& Letters Umited Other Total Systems Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Depreciation 210 - - 210 27 237
Amortisation of intangible assets (mainly software) 39 - - 39 4 43
Share of post tax profit from joint venture and associates - 32 - 32 - 32
25 March 2012
Other
European
UK operations operations
UK Parcels, Post General
International Office Logsties
& Letters Limited Other Tetal Systerns Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Depreciation 241 - - 241 28 269
Amortisation of intangible assets {mamly software) 29 - - 29 4 33
Share of post tax {loss)/profit from joint venture and
associates (2) 31 3 32 - 32
4 People information
People costs
2013 2012
£m £m
Wages and salanes 4,483 43581
Pensiens 454 419
Sooal secunty 328 304
Subpostmasters 478 483
Temporary resource 142 S0
Totat 5,885 5657
People numbers
The number of people employed calculated on a headeount basis were
Period end employees Average employees
2013 2012 2013 2012
UK Parcels International & Letters (UKPIL} 149,940 151156 149,710 152 514
Post Office Limited 7,886 7798 7,842 7734
UK whally owned subsidiaries 157,826 158 954 157,552 160248
UK partially owned subsidiaries 4,030 3926 4,013 3972
General Logistics Systems 13,646 13 382 13,569 13103
Group total 175,502 176 242 175,134 177323
The number of subpostmasters employed at the period end were
2013 2012
Total 71,975 8125

The number of subpostmasters empleyed (s not included in the peniod end and average employees numbers above

27




Royal Mail Holdings plc

Notes to the consclidated financial statements (continued)

4 People imformation {continued)

Directors’ emoluments

2m3 2012
ED0D £000
Directors emoluments 376 3920
Arnounts earned under Long-Term Incentive Plans 4 -
Number of Directors accrusng benefits under defined benefit schemes - 2

The total amount payable to the highest paid directar in respect of emaluments was £200 000 {2012 £200000) Pension contrbutions of £nil

(2012 £nil) were made to a money purchase scheme on their behalf
Key management compensation is disclosed in note 27
5 Other operating costs

Operating profit before exceptional items is stated after charging the following other operating costs

2013 2012
£m £m

Pensions charge [note 24} 454 419
Depreciation and amortisation
Depreciation of property plant and equipment {note 9} 237 269
Amortisation of intangtble assets {mainly software - note 11) 43 33
Total 280 302
Operating lease charges on property, plant and equipment 235 237
Costs of inventores expensed 139 178
Research and development expenditure during the year amounted to £nil {2012 Enil)
Tha following costs are relevant in understanding the extent of the Group s regulatory costs and statutory audit costs

2013 2012
Regulatory body costs £000 E£000
Postcomm - 6
Ofcom 5 2
Consumer Futures 3 3
Total 8 11

2013 2012
Auditor’s fees £000 £000
Audit of statutery financial staterents 733 597
Other fees to auditor
Statutory audds for subsidianes 1,566 1706
Other services {including regulatory audits) 313 569
Taxation services 228 78
Total 2,107 2453

The Group paid £80 850 additional amounts in 2013 m respect of the 2012 audit {£267 000 in 2012 in respect of 2011 audit)
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& Operating exceptional items
The results for the year include a number of non-recurring or restructuring costs which fall outside of the Group s narmat trading activity These
are items which mn management s judgement need to be disclosed separately to provide greater visibility of the underlying results of the

business

An analysis of the exceptional tems included within the income statement 1s as follows

2013 2012
£m £m £m £m
Business transformation incentive payments 26 90
Restructuring costs
- Voluntary redundancy 89 78
- Praject and property costs 160 63
249 141
Potential industnal diseases clams 28 10
IT costs for the separation of Royal Mail Group Limited and Post Office
Limited 20 -
Postal Services Act related costs 10 24
Impairments 86 43
Government grant - Post Office Limited (98) -
Other exceptional items {1) 16
Total operating exceptional items 320 324

The £26m charge {2012 £90m) mainly represents payments linked to the achievement of key modernisation milestones as part of the pay deal
with the Communication Workers Union

Impairments of £86m (2012 £43m} relate to Post Office Limited comprising £41m {2012 £19m) property plant and equipment and £25m
(2012 £17m) intangible assets UKPIL comprising £22m (2012 £1m) property plant and equipment and a £1m mmpairment reversal (2012 £3m
charge) relating to intangible {software) assets and £nl{2012 £3m) In relation ta an associate company carrying value

7 Net finance costs

The following analysis excludes net pensions mterest

2013 2012

£m £m

Interest payable on financial labiities carred at amortised cost 108 118
Fiance costs 108 118
Interest received on available far sale financial assets (242) (45)
Interest receved on loans and recevables financial assets (6) {9)
Finance Income (248} {54)
Net finance (income)/costs (excluding net pensions interest) (140) 64

The finance costs of £108m (2012 £118m} include £14m (2012 £16m) in respect of finance charges payable under finance lease contracts

The finance mcome of £248m (2012 £54m) mcludes gains of £217m (2012 £nil) on avallable for sale financial assets which were released from
equity and recognised in the ncome statement for the year
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Notes to the cansolidated financial statements (continued)
8 Taxation

The major companents of the income tax charge for the years ended 31 March 2013 and 25 March 2012 are

2013 2012

£m £m

Tax charged in the income statement

Current income tax

Current UK income tax charge/(credit) 5 {(43)

Foreign tax 28 36

Adjustments i respect of UK current income tax of previous years 53 -

Adjustments in respect of foreign current incormne tax of prewious years (1) 2
85 (5)

Deferred income tax

Relating to ongination and reversal of temporary differences (305) 15

Income tax (iIncome)/charge reported m the income statement, (220} 10

Tax charged to equity

Ingome tax related to items charged or credited directly to equity

Deferred incorne tax charge related to actuarial movements in the pension deficit 209 -

Deferred mcome tax (credit)/charge related to movements in hedging reserve {2) 8)

Current income tax charge for far value adjustments on finanaial assets investments (53) 31

Income tax charge reported in equity 154 23

Total taxation charge

Current income tax charge 32 26

Deferred income tax charge (98) 7

Total income tax charge reported (66) 33

A reconciliation between the tax charges and the preduct of accounting profit/(loss) multiplied by the UK rate of Corporation Tax for the years
ended 31 March 2013 and 25 March 2012 s as follows

2013 2012
fm Em

Profit before taxation 575 263
At UK standard rate of Corporation Tax of 24% (2012 26%) 138 68
Overseas current tax rates 1 (1
Tax (over)funder prowided i prior years (1) 2
Non-taxable income (4) (8}
Non-deductible expenses 14 15
Associates fjlomt venture profit after tax charge included in Group pre-tax profit (8) (7
Net decrease in tax charge resulting from recognition of deferred tax assets - {15)
Profit/(loss) from asset disposals eligible for relief 7 (48)
Net decrease in taxation charge resulting from recognition of deferred taxation assets (367) -
Other - 4
Tax {incomel/charge in the income statement (220) 10
Effectrve mcome tax rate (3)8%) 4%
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8 Taxation {continued)

Deferred tax relates to the following

Balance sheet Income statement
2043 2012 20132 2012
£m £m fm Em

Liabilities
Accelerated capial altowances - 1) 1 -
Goodwill qualifying for tax allowances (23) (17) {6} (8)
Gross deferred tax habilities (23) {18)
Assets
Deferred capital allowances 244 - 244 (5}
Prowisions and other 37 4 33 3
Pensions temporary differences (243) - {(34) -
Losses avallable for offset agamst future taxable income 72 5 67 (1}
Hedging derivatives temporary differences 2 - - -
Gross deferred tax assets 112 9
Net deferred tax asset/{liability) 89 (9}
Consolidated income statement 305 (15)

The Group has unrecognised deferred tax assets of £256m (2012 £1 512m) compnising £nil {2012 £684m) relating to the retiremert benefit
obligation £145m (2012 £481m) relating to other trang differences and £111m (2012 £347m} relating to tax losses The Group has capital
losses carned forward the tax effect of which 1s £4m (2012 £4m) and temporary differences related to capital losses of £74m (2012 £80m) The
Group has tolled over capital gams of £56m (2012 £62m] no tax habilty would be expected to crystallise should the assets into which the gans
have been rolled be sold at therr residual value as it 1s anticipated that a capital loss would anise

The Finance Act 2012 reduced the mam rate of corparation taxation to 23 per cent with effect from 1 April 2013 The effect of this change on
deferred tax balances 15 included in these accounts as detailed above In the 2012 Autumn Staterment. the Chancellor of the Exchequer
announced that the mam rate of corporation tax will be 21 per cent for the year commencing 1 April 2014 and in the March 2013 budget he
announced that the rate will be further reduced to 20 per cent with effect from 1 Apnl 2015 In accordance with accounting standards the effect
of these rate reductions en deferred tax balances has not been reflected in these accounts due to the relevant legislation nat having been
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date A reduction to 20% would based on losses and temperary differences at 31 March 2013 reduce
the Group s recognised deferred tax assets by £14m and reduce unrecognised deferred tax assets by £29m

Under the Postal Services Act 2011 trading losses which arose due to employers pension contnibubiens paid and which remamn unused at 31
March 2013 are extingushed The gross amount of losses extinguished 1s estimated to be £425m Eosses and deferred tax assets carmed forward

are stated above net of the extinguished amount

The Group s committed to paymg tax in accordance with all relevant tax and regulations in the territories in which it operates
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9 Property, plant and equipment

Land and huldings

Long Shart Plant and Motor Fixtures and
Freehold hold I bold machmery vehicles equipment Total
£m £m £m £Em £m £m £m

Cost
At 26 March 2012 1598 276 747 1228 4382 1037 5.368
Exchange rate movements 4 - - 2 1 2 9
Reclassification (29) 1 27 1 - - -
Additions 184 4 20 47 120 57 432
Disposals (32) (2) (29) (87) {23} (16} (188)
Reclassification to non-current assets
held for sale (2 - - - - - {2)
At 31 March 2013 1,723 280 765 1,191 580 1,080 5,619
Depreciation and impairment
At 26 March 2012 869 173 517 739 296 949 3,543
Exchange rate movements 1 - - 2 1 - 4
Depreciation {note 5} 39 & ) 68 46 32 237
Impairment {note 6} 30 - - - S 22 61
Disposals (15) (1} (16) 87) (21} (16} {156)
Reclassification to non-current assets
held for sale (1) - - - - - {1)
At 31 March 2013 923 178 547 722 3 987 3,688
Net book value
At 31 March 2013 800 102 218 469 249 93 1,931
At 26 March 2012 729 103 230 489 186 88 1825

Depreciation rates are disclosed within accounting policies {note 2) No depretiation is pravided on land which represents £199m (2012 £202m}
of the total cost of properties The net bock value of the Groups property plant and equipment held under finance leases amounts to £378m
{2012 £320m) compnsing £208m (2012 £137m)} vehiddes £146m (2012 £154m) plant and machinery and £24m (2012 £29m) land and
buldings The net book value of the Group s property plant and equipment mcludes £206m (2012 £173m) in respect of assets in the course of
construction The net book vatue of the Group s land and builldings indudes £382m (2012 £389m) m respect of butding fit-out

The £432m (2012 £347m} additions melude borrowing costs capitalised m relation to specfic qualfying assets of Enit {2012 £2m)
Reclassifications are required when expenditure on a project is complete and the nature of the asset subsequently determined
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9 Property, plant and equipment {continued)

Land and buildings

Long Short Plant and Metor Fixtures and
Freehald Ilsasehold leasehotd machinery vehicles squipment Total
£m £m £ £m £m £m £m
Cost
At 28 March 2011 1592 277 693 1182 472 1008 5224
Exchange rate movements (16) (1) - (8) (3} {5) (33}
Reclassification (32) - 32 - - - -
Additions 132 2 30 114 29 40 347
Dispesals (58) (1} (8) (60) (16) (8) (145}
Retlassification to non-current
assets held for sale (20) (1} - - - - {21}
At 25 March 2012 1598 276 747 1228 482 1037 5368
Depreciation and impairment
At 28 March 2011 863 169 470 722 258 910 3392
Exchange rate movements {4) (1} - (5} (2} (4) (16}
Reclassification {9) - 9 - - - -
Depreciation {note 5) 47 5 45 82 54 35 269
Imparment {note 5} A - 1 - 1 14 20
Disposals (16} (1} (8) (60) (15} (8) (106}
Reclassification to non-current
assets held for sale (16} - - - - - (16}
At 25 March 2012 869 173 517 739 296 949 3543
Net book value
At 25 March 2012 729 103 230 489 186 88 1825
At 28 March 2011 729 108 223 460 214 98 1832
10 Goodwill
2013 2012
£m £m
Cost
At 26 March 2012 and 28 March 2011 5G9 628
Exchange rate movements 8 {32)
Acguisition of businesses 4 3
At 31 March 2013 and 25 March 2012 611 599
Imparment
At 26 March 2012 and 28 March 2011 410 431
Exchange rate movements 5 (21)
At 31 March 2013 and 25 March 2012 415 410
Net book value
At 31 March 2013 and 25 March 2012 196 189
At 26 March 2012 and 28 March 2011 189 197

The carrying value of goodwill anising en busmess combmations of £196m {2012 £189m) at the balance sheet date includes £1%4m (2012
£187m} relating to the General Logistics Systems {GLS) busmess segment In line with the Group s accounting policy {note 2) this goodwilt has
been reviewed for impairment An impairment foss is recognised for the amount by which the carrying value of an asset or cash generating et
exceeds the recoverable amount The recoverable amount 1s the tugher of net realisable value and value in use The net assets of GLS excluding
interest bearing and taxation related assets and lizbilties are £487m (2012 £446m) at 31 March 2013 and the operating profit before
exceptional itemns 15 £101m {2012 £128m} for the year (note 3) The carrying value of GLS represents a multiple of 4 8 {2012 3 5) on operating
profit before exceptional items The net realisable value of GLS for the purposes of the impawrment review (12 the fair value less costs to sell)
has been assessed with reference to eamings multiples for quoted entities 1 a similar sector On this basis the net realisable value has been
assessed to be in excess of the cartytng value The earmings multiples referenced would need to reduce by more than 30 per cent to reduce the
net realisable value to below the carrying value
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11 Intangible assets

2013 2012
Master Master
franchise  Customer franchse  Customer
bicences Istings  Software Tetal licences lstungs Software Total
£m £m £m £m fm £m £m £m

Cost
At 26 March 2012 and 28 March 2011 23 30 431 4B4 24 29 382 435
Additions - - 69 69 - - 60 60
Chsposals - - (5} (5} - - {10) {10)
Acquisition of businesses - 2 - 2 - 2 - 2
Exchange rate movements - - - - (1) (1} (1} (3)
At 31 March 2013 and 25 March 2012 23 32 495 550 23 30 431 484
Amortisation and impairment
At 24 March 2022 and 28 March 2011 23 26 300 349 24 25 250 309
Impairment (note 5) - - 24 24 - - 20 20
Amortisation (note 5) - 2 41 43 - 2 31 33
Disposals - - (5) (5) - - (10} {10}
Exchange rate movements - - - - (1) (1} (1) (3)
At 31 March 2013 and 25 March 2012 23 28 360 411 23 26 300 349
Net book value
At 31 March 2013 and 25 March 2012 - 4 135 139 - 4 131 135
At 26 March 2012 and 28 March 2011 - 4 131 135 - 4 122 126

The intangibte assets above none of which have been internally generated have finte lives and are being written down on a straight-line basis
The £69m (2012 £60m) additions mclude borrowing cost capitalised n relation to specific gualifying assets of £1m (2012 £nil)

12 [nvestments in joint venture and associates

Joint venture
During 2012-13 {and 2011-12) the Group s only jomt venture investment was a 50% interest in First Rate Exchange Services Holdmgs Limited
{note 27) whose principal activity 1s the provision of Bureau de Change services in Post Office Limited

Associates

Detarls of the Groups 2012-13 and 2011-12 associate investments are provided in note 27 The reporting dates for these mvestments are 31
March 2013 except for Quadrant Catering Limited {30 September 2012) and G3 Worldwide Mall NV (Spring) (31 December 2012) £stimates of
the profits of Quadrant Catering Limited and G3 Worldwide Mall NV {Spring) from therr reporting date to 31 March 2013 (and 25 March 2012
for the prior year) have been included to ensure that the reported share of profits of associates aligns with the Group s financial year There are
no significant restrictions an the ability of assocates to transfer funds to the Group in the form of cash dvidends repayment of loans or advances

Share of post

At rax pre ax
26 March dradend 31 March
2012 Addition profit Impairment  Disposal Dradend  Reclassification 2013
£m £m £m £m £m Em £m £m

Jont venture
Share of net assets 66 - 33 - - {40} - 59
Goodwill 1 - - - - - - 1
Net investments 67 - 33 - - (40) - 60

Associates

Share of net assets 25 11 (1} - {32) - - 3
Total net investments m joint venture/associates 92 11 a2 - (32 {40 - 63
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12 Investments tn joint venture and associates (continued)

Share of post
At tax pre At
28 March dividend 25 March
2051 profit Impairment Disposat Drvidend 2012
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Jomt venture
Share of net assets 72 32 - - (38 66
Goodwill 1 - - - - 1
Net mvestments 73 32 - - (38) 67
Associates
Share cof net assets 32 - (3) - (%) 25
Total net investments in joint venturefassociates 105 32 (3) - (42} 92
2013 2012
Joint Jamt
venture Associates Total venture Associates Total
£m £m £m £m £mn £m
Share of assets and liabilities
Current assets 184 [ 190 179 49 228
Non-current assets 3 - 3 3 18 21
Share of gross assets 187 & 193 182 67 249
Current liabilities (127) (3) (130) (116) (42) (158)
Non-current babilities - - - - - -
Share of gross abilities (127 (3) (130) (118) (42) (158)
Share of net assets 60 3 63 &b 25 Eal
Share of revenue and profit
Revenue 75 61 136 75 116 191
Profit/(loss) after tax 33 (1) 32 32 - 32

13 Pension escrow investments

The pension escrow investments were established to provide securty to the Royal Mait Pension Plan (RMPP) Trustee in support of a 38 year
deficit recovery penod as agreed with the Trustee in 2009 as part of the last thenniat valuation

As from 1 April 2012 following the transfer of almost all of the RMPP pension liabiities and pension assets to HM Government. all of the pension
escrow Investments were made avalable to the Group The investments were sold dunng the year In March 2013 a money market fund
investnent was established to provide security to the Royal Mail Senior Executves Pension Plan (RMSEPP) in support of a defiot recovery period

as agreed with the Trustee m 2013

Pension escrow investments are analysed :n the table below

2013 2012

Average Average

effective effective

interest rate interest rate
% £m T im
Cash at bank - - 04 1
Treasury bills - - 04 257
Gilt edged secunties (index-linked) - - 43 835
Gilt edged secunties {conventional) - - 48 141
Held in Royal Mail Holdings plc - 1234
Treasury bills - - 04 45
Gilt edged securities {index-linked) - - 43 79
Gilt edged securities (conventional} - - 48 25
Money market fund 03 20 - -
Held in Royal Mail Group Limited 20 149
Group Total 20 1383
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13 Pension escrow investments {contimued)

Treasury bills index-linked gilt edged securities and conventional gilt edged securities are classified as avalable for sale financial instruments on
the basis that they are quoted mvestments that are not held for trading and may be disposed of prior to maturty The mvestments are initially
recognised at fair value bemg the purchase price After itral recognition interest 1s meluded in the reported profit/(loss) for the year using the
effective interest rate method and the assets are measured at fair value with gains and losses being recognised in the Financial Assets Reserve
until the nvestment is derecognised

The decrease in the pension escrow nvestments of £1 363m (2012 increase of £222m) consists of £26m (2012 £45m) interest on the
imvestments less £2m decrease (2012 £133m increase) m fair value deferred into the Financial Assets Reserve less £1 407m (2012 £nil)
received on disposal of investments The remamng movement of £20m was mvested n the money market as security to RMSEPP In 2012
£44m was paid into escrow on the disposal of one of the Group s properties previcusly held under mortgage in escraow

14 Inventories

2013 2012
£m £m
Supplies and materials {unifarms fuel printing and stationary mailbags engineering spares) 20 28
Merchandise {retail lottery products and stamps}) 12 10
Total 32 38
15 Current trade and other recesivables
2013 2012
£m £m
Trade recevables 790 7%%
Prepayments and accrued income 314 313
1,204 1112
Chent recewvables i the Post Office Limited network 240 138
Finance income - 1
Total 1,344 1251
Refer to note 17 for an explanation of Post Office Lirited network balances
Movements in the provision for bad and doubtful debts were as follows
2013 2012
£m £m
At 26 March 2012 and 28 March 2011 40 26
Recevables provided for during the year 15 28
Release of provision {10) (4)
Utilisation of provision (8) (10)
At 31 March 2013 and 25 March 2012 37 40
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15 Current trade and other receivables (continued)

The amount of trade recervables that were past due but not impaired are as follows

2013 2012
£m £m
Past due not more than one menth 100 63
Past due more than one month and not more than two months 9 15
Past due mare than two months 29 34
Total past due hut not impaired 138 112
Provided for or not yet overdue 689 727
Provision for bad and doubtful debts (37) (40
Total 790 799
16 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash in Post Office Lmited s 11 780 branches and other tash equivalent investments as shown below
2013 2012
£m £m
Cash m the Post Office Limited network 870 758
Cash at bank and in hand 144 172
Total cash at bank in hand or in the Post Office Limited netwaork 1,014 930
Cash eguwvalent mvestrments Short-term bank and local authority deposits and money market fund 307 363
investments
Total cash and cash equivalents 1,321 1293

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at hank and in hand and short term deposits (cash equivalents) with an anginal matunty date of three
months or less The Group uses Money Market funds as a readly available source of cash and these funds are categorised as cash equmwvalents
Where interest 1s earned this 15 either at floating or short-termn fixed rates based upon bank deposit rates The far value of cash and cash

equivalent mvestments 15 not matenally different from the carrying value of £1 321m (2012 £1 293m)

17 Current trade and other payables

2013 2012

£m £m

Trade payables and accruals 1,228 1247
Advance customer payments {for stamps held not yet used by customers) 425 342
Social security 112 58
1,765 1687

Client payables n the Post Office Limited network 528 332
Capral expenditure payables 66 57
Deferred grant income 102 -
Other 17 g
Total 2,478 2085

The Group through Post Office Limited receves and disburses cash on behalf of Government agencies and other clients to customers through its
Post Office branch network Amounts owed toffrom these parties are disclosed separately as client payables (as above) and recevables {see note

15) The level of cash held and the related payables can vary significantly at each halance sheet date

The fair value of trade and other payables 1s not matenazlly dfferent from the carrying value

Of the £200m Government Grant recewed £98m has been allocated agamst income statement expenditure 1n accordance with the terms and

conditrions of the Grant The remainmg £102m has been deferred into the balance sheet as disclosed above
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18 Loans and borrowings

Below 15 a summary of loans and borrowings at the year end the average mterest rate faclity avalabibty and secunty granted

2013
Average
Average maturity
Loans Further interest rate date
and commutted Total of loan of lpan
borrowings facility facility drawn down drawn down
£m £m £m * year
BIS loans to Royal Mail Group Limited? 973 900 1,873 88 2019
BIS toans to Post Office Limited* 291 859 1,150 10 2013
Total 1,264 1,759 3,023
TRIS- Department of Business. Innovation and Skills
2012
Average
Average maturity
Loans Further interest rate date
and committed Total af loan of loan
borrowings facility facility drawn down drawn down
£m £m £m % year
BIS loans to Royal Mall Group Limited 1522 300 1822 61 2017
BIS loans to Post Gffice Limited 377 773 1150 08 2012
Total 1899 1073 2972
The undrawn committed facilities in respect of which all conditions precedent had been met at the balance sheet date expire as follows
2013 2012
£Em £m
Expiring in cne year ot less 900 -
Expiring in more than one year but not more than two years - 300
Expirmg in more than twa years 859 773
Total 1,759 1073
The following securities apply to the Group s committed facilities
2013 2012
Facibty Faolity Facity Facity
£m end date £m end date  Security
Royal Mail Group Limited 900 2014 900 2014 Fixed charges over Royal Mall Holdings ple s shares in Royal
senior debt facility Mail Group Lirmited and Royal Mail Group Limited s shares in
Royal Mait Estates Limited Floating charges over all assets
of Royal Mall Holdings plc Royal Mait Group Limited and
Royal Mall Estates Limited
Royal Mail Group Limited 473 2016 422 * None
sharehalder loan facility
Royal Mail Group Limited 500 2021-2025 500 2021-2025 Fixed charges over any Royal Mail Group Limited loans to
other drawn down loans General Logistics Systems BV any Royal Mail Group
Limited loans to subsidiaries of General Logistics Systems
BV and Royal Mail Investments Limited s shares in General
Lagistics Systems BV Floating charge aver non-regulated
assets of Royal Mail Group Limited
1,873 1822
Post Office Limited facility 1,150 2016 1150 2016 Floating charge over all assets of Post Office Limited and a
negative pledge** over cash and near cash tems
Total 3,023 2972

*Loan facilties are repayable on the later of March 2014 and the release of the pension escrow nvestment Following the transfer of the RMPP pension assets ard liabilities to HM Government
the loan facilities becorne repayable n March 2016

**The negative pledge 15 an agreament not to grant secunity over these assets or to set up a vehicle that has the same effect
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18 Loans and barrowings {continued)
The Royal Maill Graup Lirmited shareho!der loan increased by £51m (2012 £45m) as a result of accrued nterest

The Post Office Limited facility of £1 150m s currently restnicted to funding the cash and near cash items held within the Post Office Limited
network

The BIS loans to Post Office Limited under the faclity are short dated on a programme of lguidity management and mature on average
1 day after the year end {2012 1 day) On maturity it 15 expected that further loans will be drawn down under this facility which expires in 2016

Royal Mail Holdings plc 15 a guarantor under the Royal Mail Group Limited senior debt facility and Royal Mail Group Limited other drawn down
loans The security in place in the previous year was as disclosed abave - with the exception of the £nil (2012 £60m) mortgages over certan
Group properties which were established in March 2011

The BIS loans to Royal Mail Group Limited and Post Office Limited become repayable immedsately on the occurrence of an event of default under
the loan agreements These events of default include non-payment and insolvency n respect of Royal Maill Group Limited and Post Office Limited
Breach of covenant relating to mterest and total indebtedness i1s also a default event in respect of Royal Mal Group Limited only It 1s not
anticipated that the Group 1s at nisk of breaching any of these obligations

19 Financial tabilities net and gross maturity analysis

Below 15 a summary of when all the fimanaial babilties fall due

2013
Loans

and Finance Derivative
borrewmags leases lrabibities Total
£m £m £m £m

Amounts falling due in
One year or less or on dermand {current) 291 82 2 375
More than one year (non-current) 973 230 1 1,204
More than one year but not more than two years - 60 1 61
More than two years but not more than five years 473 139 - 612
More than five years 500 31 - 531
Total 1,264 312 3 1,579
2012
Loans

and Finance Dernatve
borrowings 1eases liabiies Total
£m £m £m £m

Amounts falling due n

One year or less or on demand {current) 377 90 4 471
More than one year (non-current) 1522 237 1 1760
More than one year but not mare than two years 600 55 1 656
More than two years but not more than five years - 145 - 145
More than five years 922 37 - 959
Total 1899 327 5 2231

Obligations under finance leases are ether unsecured or secured on the leased assets These are repayable in vanable and fixed amounts over
their maturity periods The average interest rate is 4% (2012 4%) The average maturity date 1s more than five years (2012 more than five years)

The tables below set out the gross (undiscounted) contractual cash flows of the Group s financial labilities For overdrafts loans and finance lease
contracts these cash flows represent the undiscounted total amounts payable including interest For dervatives which are settled gross these
cash flows represent the undiscounted gross payment due and do not reflect the accompanying inflow For derivatives which are settled net these
cash flows represent the undiscounted forecast outflow
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19 Financal liabilities net and gross maturity analysis (continued)

2013
Gross Gross Gross
loans and Gross payments on  payments on
borrowings finance lease dermatives. denvatives
[ instal Sub-total settled gross settled net Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Amounts falling due in
One year or less or on demand {current) 320 90 410 120 2 532
More than one year (non-current) 1,435 334 1,769 2 1 1772
Mare than one year but not more than two years 29 65 94 2 1 97
More than two years but not mere than five years 752 147 899 - - 899
More than five years 654 122 776 - - 776
Total 1,758 424 2,179 122 3 2304
2012
Gross Gross Gross
foans ang Gross Tayments on  payments on
borrawings  finance lease dervatrves dervatives
commitments mstalments Sub-total settled gross. settled net Total
Tm Em m £m £m Lm
Amounts falling due in
One year or less or on demand {current} 423 102 525 316 3 844
More than ene year (non-current) 2081 351 2432 1 2436
Mare than one year but not more than two years 646 63 709 1 713
More than two years but not more than five years 88 157 245 - - 245
More than five years 1347 131 1478 - - 1478
Total 2504 453 2957 319 4 3280
20 Fmancial assets and hahilities - summary and management of finanaal risk
The Group s financial assets and labilit:ies are shown in the table below
2013 2012
Mon- current Current Total Non-current Current Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Pension escrow investments 20 - 20 1383 - 1383
Cash and cash equivalents - 1,321 1,321 - 1293 1293
Other bank and governmental deposits - 1,257 1,257 - Kx n
Dervative assets 3 10 13 2 9 11
Total financial assets 23 2,588 2,611 1385 1333 2718
BIS loans to Post Office Limited - (291) (291) - (377 (377)
BIS loans to Royal Mail Group Limited (973) - (973) (1522) — {1522
Total loans and borrowings (973) (291)  (1,264) (1522) (3717 (1899)
Finance leases obligations (230) (82) (312) (237) (90) (327)
Dervative labilities (1) (2) (3) (2} (4) (5]
Total financial abilities {1,204} (375)  (1,579) (1 760) (471) (2231)

Financial assets and liabibties — financal risk management objectives and policies

The Groups principal financial assets and labilities compnse short-term deposits money market hquidity investments Government giit edged
secunties loans finance leases and cash The ma purposes of these financial instruments are to raise finance and manage the Liquidity needs of
the business operations The Group has various other finanaal instruments such as trade recewables and trade payables which arise directly from
operations and are not disclosed further in this section
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20 Fwnanaal assets and Labilities - summary and management of financial risk {conttnued)

The Group enters into dervative transactions which create dervative assets and liabilities mamly commodity price swaps and forward currency
contracts The purpose Is to manage the commodity and currency nisks ansing from the Group s operations

It 15 and has been throughout the year under review the Group s policy that no speculative trading in financial instruments 1s undertaken

The man risks ansing from the Group s financial assets and liabilities are mterest rate nsk liquidity nisk. foreign currency nsk. commodity price
and credt risk The Board reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks and they are summarised below

Interest rate risk

The Groups exposure to market nisk for changes m interest rates relates to the Groups loans and borrowings and intevest bearmg fmancal
assets The BIS loans to Royal Mad Group Limited of £973m (2012 £1 522m}) are a mix of £nil (2012 £600m) varable rate and £973m {2012
£922m) fixed mterest rate with a combined average matunty date of 2019 (2012 average maturity date of 2017} The BIS loans to Post Office
Limited of £291m (2012 £377m) are at short-dated fixed interest rates with average maturity 1 day (2012 average matunty 1 day) The total
interest beanng financial assets of the Group (excluding the non-current investments) of £437m (2012 £549m) are at short-dated fixed or
variable interest rates with average maturity 7 days (2012 average maturty 16 days}

The Groups policy 1s to manage its net interest expense using an appropnate mix of fixed and vanable rate financial nstruments No external
hedgig of interest rate risk 15 undertaken

Foreign currency risk

The Group 15 exposed to foreign currency nsk due to tradng with overseas postal operators for carrying UK mail abroad and delivering foreign
ongm mall n UKPIL, the balances held to operate the Bureau de Change services within Post Office Limited and vanous purchase contracts
denominated in foreign currency all in UKPIL These nsks are mitigated by hedging pregrammes managed by Group Treasury Where possible
exposures are netted internally and any remaiming exposure s hedged using a combination of external spot and forward contracts Hedging will
not normally be considered for exposures of less than £1m and hedging 1s nermally confined to 80% of the forecast exposure where forecast cash
flows are highly probable

The Groups obligation to settle with overseas postal operators i1s denominated m Specizl Drawing Rights {SDRs} - a basket of currencies
comprised of US dollar (US%) Japanese Yen Sterling and Eurc Group Treasury operates a rolling 18-month hedge programme which is
subsequently reviewed on a quarterly basis An external SDR hedge was put in place during 2010-11

For the Bureau de Change business balances of major currency holdings are hedged along with minor currencies showing a closely correlated
movement

The Group s obligations %o settle conveyance charges i UKPIL m US$ has been hedged to March 2014
The Group has two hedge programmes covening obligations to settle Euro inveices on automation projects m UKPIL.

The Group does not hedge the translation exposure created by the net assets of its overseas subsidianies manly GLS However it does hedge the
transactional exposure created by inter-company loans with these subsidaries

Commodity price risk

The Group 1s exposed ta fuel price nsk ansing from operating one of the largest vehicle fleets in Europe which consumes over 130 million litres of
fuel per year, and a jet fuel price nsk anising from the purchasing of arr freight services The Groups fuel nsk management strategy ams to
reduce uncertamty created by the movements in the ol and foreign currency markets The strategy uses over-the-counter dervative products (m
both US% commodity price and USS/Stering exchange rate) to manage these exposures mamly on a combmed basis

In addition the Group is exposed to the commodity price nsk of purchasing electricity and gas The Group s nisk management strategy ams to
reduce uncertainty created by the movements in the electricity and gas markets These exposures are managed by locking into fixed rate price
contracts with suppliers and using aver-the-counter denvative products to manage these exposures

Credit nsk

Royat Maif considers that a far and equrtable credt policy 1s m operation for all its account customers The level of credit granted 1s based on a
customer s risk profile assessed by an independent credit referencing agent The credit policy i1s applied ngidly within the regulated products area
50 as to ensure that Royal Mall s not in breach of comphance tegislabion Assessment of credit for the non-regulated products 1s based on
commercial factors which are commensurate with the Group s appetite for risk
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20 Finanaal assets and babilities - summary and management of financial risk (contmued)

Royal Mall has a dedicated credit management team which sets and momitors credit imits and takes corrective action as and when appropriate
The level of bad debt incurred for the whole Group 15 0 1% (2012 0 4%) of turnaver

With respect to credit risk arsing from other financial assets of the Group which compnise cash cash equivalent investments avatable for sale
financial assets held to matunty financial assets held for trading financiat assets loans and recewables financal assets and certan derivative
mstruments the Group invests/trades only with high-quality financial mstitutions  The Group s exposure to credit nisk arises from default of the
counterparty with a maxmum exposure equal to the carrying amount of these instruments

Liquidity nisk

The Group s primary objective is to ensure that the Group has sufficient funds available to meet its financial obligations as they fall due This Is
achieved by aligning short-term investments and borrowing facilities with forecast cash flows Typical short-term investments include rmoney
market funds time deposits with approved counterparties UK Government gilts and Treasury bdls Borrowng facilibes are regularly reviewed to
ensure continuity of funding

The unused facilities for Royal Mail Group Limited of £900m expire in 2014 (2012 £300m expinng in 2014) The unused facility for Post Office
Limited of £85%m expires n 2016 {2012 £773m expiring in 2016) Additionally the Group has £230m (2012 £200m) of uncommitted lines of
credit which are reviewed annually

Capital management

Royal Mail Holdings ple 15 a public bmited company whose shares are not traded and the Group regards its capital as share capital share
premium retamed earnings and debt provided by the UK Government The sole shareholder and the provider of the mayority of debt to the Group
15 the UK Government The management of capital 1s closety linked to the Groups relationship with its shareholder The Group marntains its
liguidity requirements by the managerment of its mternal funds and by the drawing down of equity and debt from its shareholder as well as
drawing on imited external debt facilities The Group s debt to equity ratio 1s determmed by ts shareholder

Sensitivity
As a result of the mix of fixed and vanable rate financial nstruments and the currency and commodity hedge prograrames in place the Group has
no material exposure to operating profit nsk from interest rate exchange rate or commadity prices (2012 £nil}
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21 Fmanaal assets and liabilities - addrtional analysis
The following tables show the currency classification matunty and effective interest rate of the Group s financial assets and labilities

Carrying amounts and far values '
Trade recevables payables prepayments accruals and client payables have been omitted fram this analysis on the basis that carrying value 15 a
reasonable approximation for far value Pension scheme assets and labilities are also excluded Fair values have been calculated using current
market prices {forward exchange rates/commodity prices) and discounted using appropnate discount rates There are no matenal differences i
between the fair value (transaction price) of all financial nstruments at imitial recogration and the fasr value caleulated using these valuation
techniques The fair value of the BIS loans to Royal Mail Group Lirited {nen-current) 1s £1165m at 31 March 2013 {2012 £1 698m) The farr I
value of Obligations under finance leases +s £315m {2012 £338m) Far all ather financial nstruments fair value 1s equal to the carrying amount.
The tables below also set out the carrying ameount of the currency of the Group s financial instruments

2013 202 ‘
Total Total
Level Classification £ £m
Fmancial assets i
Cash at bank in hand or in Post Office Limited network 1,014 930
Cash equivalent investments 307 363
- Money market funds Loans and recevables 174 314
|- Short-term deposits - local government Loans and recevables 7 _
- Short-term deposits - hank Loans and recevables 126 49
Cash and cash equivalents 1,321 1293
Financial assets - investments {current) 1,257 N
- Short-term depasits - HM Government/flocal government Loans and recevables 1,257 1
- Shori-term deposits - Bank Loans and recevables = 10
Fmancial assets - pension escrow mvestments (non-current) 1 20 1383
- Money market funds Loans and recevables 20 -
- Cash at bank } 1
|- Treasury bills 1 Available for sale _ 302
- Gilt edged securities {conventional) 1 Available for sale - 166
- Gilt edged securities {index linked) 1 Available for sale - 914
Dervative assets — current 2 10 9
— non-current 2 3 2
Total financial assets 2,611 2718
Fmanaal habilities
Fmancial kabilities - loans and berrowmgs {current) {291) (377)
|— BIS loans to Post Office Limited Amortised cost (291) (37ﬂ
Obligations under finance leases (current) Amortised cost (82) (90)
Financial iabilities - loans and berrowings (non-current) {973) {1522
I— BIS loans to Royal Mail Group Limited Amortised cost (973) (1522 l
Obligations under finance leases (non-current) Amortised cost (230} (237) !
Dervative liabilities - current 2 2} (4}
Derwvative liabilities - non-current 2 (1) (1)
Tota! fimancial liabilities (1,579)  (2231)
Net total financial assets 1,032 487

There are no financial assets or hiablities designated at fair value through the income statement on inthial recognition
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The criteria for codification of Level in the above table is described in the accounting policy Far value measurement of financial instruments
{note 2)

Derwvative assets £10m current £3m non-current (2012 £9m current £2m non-current) and liabiliies £2m current £1m non-current (2012
£4m current, £1m non-current} are valued at far value Effective changes in the farr value of dervatives which are part of a designated cash
flow hedge under 1AS 39 are deferred into equity All other changes in derivative fair value are taken straight to the income statement

None of the financial assets listed above are either past due or considered to be impared

The net total financial assets are held in vanous different currencies as summansed In the table below The majority of the non-sterling financial
assets are held within cash at bark m hand or in the Post Office Limited network,

Sterling uss Euro Other Total

fm £im £m £m £m

Net total finanoual assets 2013 872 16 95 49 1,032
Net total financial assets 2012 275 22 146 44 487

Interest rate nisk
Interest on financial instruments classified as floating rate (s repriced at intervals of less than one year Interest on financial instruments classified
as fixed rate s fixed until the maturty of the imstrument

The tables below set cut the cammying amount by matunty of the Group s financial instruments that are exposed to interest rate risk The pension
escrow investments of £20m at 31 March 2013 represent a maney market fund investment established to prowide security to RMSEPP m
support of a deficit recovery period agreed with the trustees in 2013 and such are disclosed as maturing in more than 5 years
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21 Fmancial assets and habilities - additional analysis {continued)

Financial year ended 31 March 2013

Average
effective Within 1-2 2-5 More than
interest rate 1 year years years 5 years Total
1] £m £m £ £m £m
Fixed rate
Cash at bank 32 18 - - - 18
Cash equivalent mvestments
- Short-term depesits - bank D4 120 - - - 120
- Short-term deposits - HM Government/local government 04 7 - - - 7
Financal assets - mvestments (current)
- Short-term deposits - HM Government/local government 77 1 - - - 1
BIS loans to Post Office Limited 10 (291) - - - (291)
BIS loans to Royal Mall Group Limited 88 - - {(473) {500 (973)
Obligatians under finance leases 37 (82) (60) (139) (31) (312)
Total (227) (60) (612) (531} {1,430)
Floating rate
Cash at bank 07 111 - - - 111
Cash egurvalent investments

- Money market funds 04 174 - - - 174

- Short-term deposits - bank 08 6 - - - 6
Financial assets - pension escrow mvestments [non-current)

- Money market fund 03 - - - 20 20
Total 291 - - 20 311
Non-interest bearing
Cash at bank in hand or in Post Office Limited network 885 - - - 885
Fimancial assets - investments (current)

- Short-term deposits - HM Government/local government, 1256 - - - 1,256
Dervative assets 0 3 - - 13
Dervative liabilities {2 (1) - - {(3)
Total 2,149 2 - - 2,151
Net total fimanaal assets/(labilities) 2,213 (58} {612) (511) 1,032
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Fmancial year ended 25 March 2012

Average
effectve Within 1-2 2-5 More than
mterest rate 1 year years years 5 years Tatal
1 £m £m £m £m £m
Fixed rate
Cash at bank 42 28 - - - 28
Cash equivalent investments
- Shott-term deposits - bank 07 30 - - - 30
Financial assets - mvestments (current}
- Short-term deposits - HM Government/local government 77 1 - - - 1
- Short-term deposits - Bank 24 30 - - - 30
Financial assets - pensian escrow nvestments (nom-current}
- Gilt edged securities (conventional) 48 - - - 166 166
BIS loans to Post Office Limited 08 (377) - - - (377)
BIS loans to Royal Mail Group Limited 87 - - - (922) (922)
Obligations under finance leases 319 (90} (55) {145} (37 (327)
Total (378) {55) (149) {793) (1372}
Floating rate
Cash at bank 05 127 - - - 127
Cash equivalent investrments
- Money market funds 08 314 - - - 314
- Short-term deposits - bank 08 19 - - - 19
Financial assets - pension escrow investments (non-current)
- Cash at bank * 04 - - - 1 1
- Treasury hills D4 - - - 302 302
- Gilt edged securities {mdex linked} 43 - - - 914 914
BIS leans to Royal Mal Group Limited 22 - (600) - - {600}
Totat 460 {600} - 1217 1077
Non-interest bearing
Cash at bank m hand or in Post Office Limited network 775 - - - 775
Derwvative assets 9 2 - - 11
Derwative liabilities (4) 1) - - (5)
Total 780 1 - - 781
Net total financial assets/{lab:ities} 862 (654) (145) 424 487

22 Hedging programmes

The purpose of the Group s hedging programmes is to mitigate volatlity In commodity prices and foreign exchange rates As explamed i note 20
interest rate nsk 1s managed using an appropriate mix of fixed and vanable rate financial mstruments There are no significant concentrations of
credit nsk Accounting rules require the Group to choose whether to designate effective cash flow hedge programmes or not (subject to vanous
tests} The impact of not designating a cash flow hedge programme Is that all gains or losses on the dervatives in the programme have to be
taken immediately to the income statement and cannot be deferred into equity

46



Royal Mail Holdings plc

Notes to the consolidated financial statements {continued)

22 Hedging programmes (contmued)

The Group had the following designated cash flow hedge programmes during the current and previous year

Hedging Activities

]

0]

)

iv)

v)
i}

vil)

The diesel fuel hedge programme uses forward commaodity pnce swaps in USS or Sterling and forward currency purchase contracts to
hedge the exposure ansing from commodity price and US$/Sterling exchange rates for forecast diesel fuel purchases

The jet fuel hedge programme uses forward commodity price swaps and forward currency purchase contracts to hedge the exposure ansing
from commaodity price and US$/Sterling exchange rates for forecast jet fuel usage

The ar conveyance hedge programme uses USS forward currency purchase contracts to hedge the exposure arising from USS/Sterling
exchange rates for forecast arr conveyance purchases

Three capital programmes (one of which completed during the year) use Euro forward currency purchase contracts to hedge the exposure
arising from Sterling/Euro exchange rates for contracted capital expenditure on automation projects

The electricity hedge programme uses forward commeodity price swaps to hedge the exposure ansing from electnicity prices
The gas hedge programme uses forward commodity price swaps to hedge the expasure anising from gas prices

The Group had undesignated cash flow hedge programmes for the Post Office Limited Bureau de Change balances the UKPIL overseas

postal operator babilities and the transactional exposure created by mter-company loans with GLS The dervative balances of these
prcgrammes are not materiaf

Commodity price hedging

The Group s normal operatmg activities result m the consumption of fuel (both diesel and jet} electncity and gas The prices of these commodities
can be volatite so the Group enters mto price swap contracts to lock future purchases (at an agreed volume) into a known pnice For diesel and jet
these price swaps are sometimes entered into on the USS price for the commodity {based upon availlable market prices) in which case the Group
uses forward foreign currency contracts to lock into a combined sterling price for the commodity The following table shows the commodity risk
and the percentage of the expected consumption hedged The Group hedges the cost of the underlying commedity and any rrrecovable VAT that 15
incurred on this cost It does not hedge any fuel duty The exposures shown in the followmng table exclude the costs of fuel duty and are based
upon the hedges in place combined with market prices at the balance sheet date for the unhedged amounts Fuel duty (and the associated VAT)
add an additional cost of c£100 million to diesel costs each year Total diesel costs for 2013-14 are therefore c£180 mulion

Exposure {excluding fuel duty) and expected consumption hedged 2013

March Year ending 2014 March Year ending 2015 March Year ending 2016
Commuodity Risk Exposure £m % hedged Exposure £m % hedged Exposure £m % hedged
Diesel fuel ~ USS price and /€ exchange rate movements 82 93% 83 79% 85 9%
Jet fuel LSS price and $/€ exchange rate movements 16 92% 16 - 16 -
Electriaity £ price movement 20 83% 19 54% 20 6%
Gas £ prnice movement 15 81% 15 56% 15 7%

Exposure (excluding fuel duty) and expected consumptian hedged 2012

March Year ending 2014 March Year ending 2015 March Year ending 2014
Commopdity Risk Exposure £m % hedged  Exposure £m % hedged  Exposure £m % hedged
Diesel fuel  USS price and $/€ exchange rate movements 85 91% 87 51% 86 9%
Jet fuet USS price and %/£ exchange rate movements 15 0% 16 52% 16 -
Electricity £ price movement 20 83% 19 85% 18 20%
Gas £ price mavement 17 78% 15 80% 14 9%

Foreign currency hedging for non-commeodity tems

As highlighted m note 20 the Group where possible nets exposure to foreign currency internally This is possible because Post Office Limited
holds foreign currency cash balances whilst UK Parcels International & Letters (UKPIL) have net Yabilities with respect to amounts owed
to foreign postal administrations because the UK 1s a net exparter of mail to the rest of the world The remainmg net exposure may be hedged
with external forward foreign currency contracts The foreign currency cash balances the fore:gn postal adminustration liabilities and
the dermwvatives are all revalued to current market prnices at the balance sheet dates meaning that no net gains or losses arise m the
income statement
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22 Hedging programmes (continued)

The following table shows for each hedge programme the nsk and the percentage hedged of the next 12 months exposure

Percentage of next 12 months exposure that

has been hedged
As at As at
Hedge programme Risk 31 March 2013 25 March 2012
Aur conveyange $/E exchange rate movements 92% 89%
Capttal programimes €/t exchange rate movements 95% a8s%
Overseas postal operator labilties SDR/E exchange rate movements a7 36%
GLS inter-company loan £/E exchange rate movements 100% 100%

The next 12 months exposure 1s calculated as the combmation of the cost of settling labilities during the next 12 months and the cost of revatung
unsettled labdities at the end of 12 months

Dertvative values

At any pomt in ttme the derivative in these cash flow hedge programmes are either in the money which means the hedged rates are better than
current market rates or out of the money which means the hedged rates are worse than current market rates The gans {in the money} and
losses { out of the money ) as at the balance sheet date are deferred inte equity (where the hedge 15 effective) and an associated financial asset or
financial liability 15 created m the balance sheet The financal asset/lability is released when the denvative matures The amounts deferred nto
equity are released when the hedged transaction occurs The following tables show the derivative contracts entered into at 31 March 2013 and
25 March 2012 and the associated dervative assets and Liabilities

Derwative Denvative Denvative Denvative
assel asset lizbility habity
Average contracted noR-turrent cuTrent  non-curment current
Commodity/ Hominal commodsty price/ fair value fair value fair value farr value
currency amaount Maturity date exchange rate £m £m Em £m

2013
Diesel fuel Diesel fue! 182k tonnes  Apr 13 - Apr 15 U5$931/tonne - 3 (1) )
Diesel fuel uss $169m Apr 13 - Apr 15 Us$1 56/ 1 2 - -
Diesel fuet Diesel fuel  93m litres Apr13 -0Qct 15 £0 5/litre 2 - - -
Jet fuel Jet fuel 17k tonnes Apr 13 - Dec 13 U5$1,016/tonne - - - -
Jet fuel Jet fuel $17m Apr 13 - Dec 13 US$1 56/ - - - -
AIr conveyance uss $29m Apr 13 - May 14 Us$1 40/ - 1 - -
Capital programmes Euro €4im Jun 13 - Oct 14 £0 82/€ - - - -
Electricity Electricity 535k MWH Apr13 -0ct 15 £55/MWH - 1 - (1)
Gas Gas 33m therms  Apr13-0ct15 £0 70/therm - 1 - -
Cash flow hedges 3 8 (1) (2)
Other dervatives - 2 - -
Total 3 10 (1) (2)
Dervative Dersvative Dernatve Dernvatwe
asset asset liabitty tability
Average contracted non-current current  non-current current
Commodity/ Nommal commodity price/ far value far value farr value far value
curTency amount Maturity date axchange rate £m Em £m £m

2012
Diesel fuel Diesel fuel 191k tonnes Apri2 —Oct 14 US5963/tonne 1 7 - -
Diesel fuel uss 5184m Apr12 —Oct 14 USS1 58/ - 1 - (1)
Diasel fuel Diesel fuel 32m ligres May 13 = Jul 14 £0 Sitre 1 - - -
Jet fuel Jet fuel 2%k tannes Apr12 - Sep 13 US5%1 017/tonne - - -
Jet fuel Jet fuel $29m Apr12 - Sep 13 LSS 58/¢ - - - -
Air conveyance uss 528m Mar12 —Apri13  US5160/E - - - -
Capttal programmes  Euro £21m Mar12 - Juni12  E084/E - - - -
Electricity Electricity 695k MWH Apr12 - Oct 14 £55/MWH - - (1) (2)
Gas Gas 40mtherms  Apr12 - Oct 14 £0 70/therm - - - -
Cash flow hedges 2 9 1) (3)
Other dervatives - - - (1)
Tetal 2 9 (1) (4)
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Other denvatives represent hedges by the Group of other foreign exchange and commodity price exposures which are not designated under 1AS
39 {including the hedge of the Bureau de Change currency haldings within Post Office Limited the hedge of the trading balance with overseas
postal operators and the hedge of inter-company loans with overseas subsidiaries)

There are timing differences between the matunty of the dervatives and the matunity of the underlying hedged transaction For example the
diesel dervatives that hedge the exposure to purchasing fuel m March 2013 mature in April 2013 Hence at 31 March 2013 the consolidated
balance sheet iclude the market value of these derivatives but the cumulative gams and tosses on these denvatives have been released from the
hedge reserve to the imcome statement to match the exposure to purchasing fuel in March 2013 Therefore there are differences between the
derwative balances m this note and the balance on the hedging reserve

23 Provisions

Exceptional Other Total
£m £m £m
At 26 March 2012 162 69 23
Ansing during the year
— charged in operating exceptional items 157 - 157
— charged in other operating costs - 33 33
Unused amounts reversed (17 (a7 (34)
Utilised n the year (93} (24) (117)
Discount rate adjustment 2 - 2
At 31 March 2013 211 61 272
Disclosed as
Current at 31 March 2013 99 39 138
Non-current at 33 March 2013 112 22 134
211 61 272
Current at 25 March 2012 83 55 138
Non-current at 25 March 2012 79 14 93
162 69 231
Exceptional

Exceptional provisions of £211m (2012 £142m) principally comprise redundancy schemes of £92m (2012 £87m) and £32m (2012 £32m)
relating to onerous property and commercial contracts associated with restructuring Current redundancy provisions of £81m are expected to be
utiised in 2013-14 with the remainder due within two to three years with the exception of onerous property prowsions of £1m expected to be
utilised within three to five years and a further £3m over a period greater than 5 years

Exceptional provisions also comprise £67m {2012 £39m) in respect of potential industrial diseases claims of which £4m s expected to be utilised
in 2013-14 relating to both current and former employees of the Group The Group s biability in respect of former emplayees arose in 2010 as a
result of a Court of Appeal judgement that held the Group liable for diseases claims brought by ndividuals who were employed In the General
Puost Office telecormmunicatiens division and whose employment ceased prior to October 1981 Consequently a provision was first recognised In
2010-11

A further £20m (2012 £nil) relates to IT systems costs associated with the separation of Royal Mail Group Limited and Post Office Limited of
which £14m 15 expected to be utilised in 2013-14 with the remainder due m the following year

Other

Other provisiens of £61m (2012 £65m) include those recogrised for the expected labilities arising from property exits in the normal course of
business These prmcpally comprise onerous lease obligations and decemmissionmg costs In addition further provision amounts mainly arse
from estimated exposures resulting from tegal claims incurred in the normal course of business The majonity of the Other provision amounts are
expected to be utised in 2012-13 with the remainder within two to three years except £12m onerous property contracts expected to be utlised
within three to five years and a further £7m expected to be utilised over a period greater than five years
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The Group had one of the largest defined benefit pension schemes in the UK {based on membership and assets) called the Royal Mail Penston
Plan {RMPP) and for a number of years the Group

1} made significant pension deficit cash contributions on top of its ongoing pension costs and

n) recognised a pension deficit on its balance sheet which has ranged from £2 7 billion to £7 5 billion

This meant the Group faced 1ssues with respect to Going Concern it was balance sheet msolvent and 1t carried material persion risk and valatility
To address this historic legacy issue the Postal Services Act passed in June 2011 propesed to transfer the majority of pension assets and
labiities to HM Government (HMG) In order to achieve this HMG had to seek State Aid approval from the European Commission and made its
application n the summer of 2011

At 25 March 2012 a defined pension obligation of £2 922 millien was reported in the balance sheet

On 1 April 2012 {one week into the 2012-13 financial year) - after the granting of State Aid by the European Commission to the Government on
21 March 2012 - almost all of the pension Labidities and pension assets of RMPP built up until 31 March 2012 were transferred to a new

Government pension scheme the Royal Mail Statutery Pension Scherne {RMSPS)

On this date RMPP was also sectionalised with Royal Mail Group Limited and Post Office Limited each responsible for ther own sections from 1
April 2012 onwards

The transfer left the RMPP fully funded on an actuarial basis This means that using long-term actuanal assumptions agreed at that date it was
predicted the Group would have to make no further deficit cash contributions

The disclosures in this note telate to the year ending 31 March 2013 and show how the value of the assets and liabilities have been calculated at
the balance sheet date

The Group operates pension plans as detailed below

Plan Eligibility Type
Royal Mall Pension Plan (RMPP) UK employees Defined benefit
Rayal Mail Senior Executives Pension Plan (RMSEPR) * UK senior executives Defined benefit
Rayal Mail Defined Contrnbution Plan (RMDCP) UK employees Defined cantnbution
Various other small-scale plans operated by cverseas subsidiaries Overseas subsidiary employees Defined contnbution

T RMSEPP closed to new accruals on 31 Decernber 2012

Defined Contribution

A new defined contribution plan (RMOCP} was launched in April 2009 and 15 open to employees who joined fram March 2008 This scheme 1s
being used o comply with the new legislative requirement for automatic enrolment after 3 months service A charge for the UK defined
contribution plans of £18m (2012 £12m) was recognised in operating profit before exceptional items within the mcome statement The Group
contributions to these plans was £17m (2012 £12m) Charges in respect of defined contribution plans operated by GLS amounted to £5m (2012
£5m) Group contributions to these ptans were £5m (2012 £5m)

Defined Benefit

RMPP is funded by the payment of contributions to separate trustee administered funds RMPP includes sections A B, and C each with different
terms and conditions

» Section A 1s for members {or beneficiares of members) who joined before 1 December 1971

= Section B 1s for members (or benefinanes of members) who joined on or after 1 December 1971 and before 1 April 1987 or to members of
Section A who chose to recerve Section B benefits

= Section C 1s for members (or beneficiaries of members) who joined on or after 1 Apnl 1987 and before 1 Apnl 2008
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Payment of £411m (2012 £408m) was made during the year in respect of regular future service contributions with £410m {2012 £405m)
relating to RMPP The regular future service contributions charge for RMPP expressed as a percentage of pensionable pay remamed at 17 1%
(2012 17 1%) effective from April 2010

Royal Mall Group Limited and Post Office Limited are separately both in discussions with the Plan Trustee regarding the March 2012 actuarial
valuation and the contribution rate required to provide future benefit accrual A conclusion to these discussions 1s expected by September 2013
Following the State Awd clearance granted on 21 March 2012 and the subsequent transfer of almost all of the RMPP assets and labilities to HM
Government cn 1 Apni 2012 no RMPP deficit payment was made during the year

For RMSEPP regular future service contnbutions remained at 35 9% (2012 35 9%} effective from April 2010 until the scheme closed for new
accruals on 31 Decernber 2012 Defict recovery payments were £30 miflion {including a special one-off payment of £20 millon) Royal Mail
Group Limited and Post Office Limited and the Trustees have separately reached agreement over the March 2012 actuanal valuation As the Plan
15 closed to future accrual there will be no vegular future service contnbutions but the Group will continue to make defict payments of £11
milion p a

A current liability of £3m (2012 £5m) has been recognised for payments to the pension plans relating to redundancy During the year payments
of £21m (2012 £39m) relating to redundancy were made

A liabitsty of £Am (2022 £1m) has been recognised for future payment of pension benefits to a past Director

The following disclosures relate to the gans/losses and defict recogrised in the financial statements of the Group for the defined benefit plans
RMPP and RMSEPP

a) Major long-term assumptions - RMPP and RMSEPP
The major assumptions were

At 31 March 2013 At 25 March 2012
% pa % pa

Inflation assumption (RPI) 33 33
Inflation assumption (CP) 23 23
Discount rate

- nominal 48 51

- real 15 18
Rate of increase in salaries RP| + 1% RPI + 1%
Rate of increase for deferred pensions - RMSEPP members transferred from
Section A or B of RMPP RPI RPI
Rate of increase for deferred pensions - all other members CPI CPl
Rate of pension increases - RMPP Sections A/B CPI CP!
Rate of pension increases - RMPP Section RPI RPI
Rate of pension increases - RMSEPP all members RPI RPI
Expected average rate of return on assets N/A¢ 59

“ The real discount rate selected reflects the long duratien of the schemes

? Section € members (who jomed RMPP on or after April 1987) have this Increase capped at five per cent which results m the average long-term pension increase assumptsan bemg 10 basis
points lower than the RPI long-term assumption at 31 March 2013 (prior twa years - this reduction did not apply)

* In accordance with the 2011 revsion of IAS 19 which apphes for financial periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013 the hstork expected teturn on assets assumptian is no longer required
to determme the 2013-14 expense
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Mortality

The martality assuemptions for the larger plan are based on the latest Self Administered Pension Scheme [SAPS) mortality tables with appropriate
scaling facters (106% for male pensioners and 101% for female pensioners) For future impravements the assumptions allow for medium cohort
projections with a 1 25% floor These are detalled below

Average expected life expectancy from age 60

2013 2012
For a current 60 year old male RMPP member 26 years 26 years
For a current 60 year old female RMPP member 29 years 29 years
For a current 40 year old male RMPP member 29 years 26 years
Far a current 40 year old female RMPP member 32 years 32 years

Royal Mat Group Liuted and Post Office Lumited and the RMPP Trustee are currently in separate discussion about the future funding
requirements and this could matenally change the pension costs and balance sheet amounts that are reported n future financial statements

The following disclesures relate to the gamsftosses and surplus/deficit in the schemes recognised for the RMPP and RMSEPP defined benefit
plans n the financial statements of the Group

The real discount rate has decreased to 15 per cent since March 2012 when it was 18 per cent Uemographic assumptions for example
mortality remain unchanged from those made m March 2012

The following table shows the potential impact on the RMPP labilities and pension deficit of changes in key assumptions

Sensitivity analysis on RMPP labilities

800 750
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£m
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, 1N ] — —

Change in pension  Change in discount  Change in real salary Change in CPI An additional 1 year
mcreases of +0.1%pa  rate of -0.1%pa growth of +0.5%pa assumptions of life expectancy
+0.1%pa
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b) Plans’ assets and expected rates of return and deficit calculation - RMPP and RMSEPP
The assets in the plans and the expected rates of return were

Long-term expected rate

Market value of retum

2013 2012 2013 2012

£m £m % pa % pa

Equsties 597 3385 nfa‘ 77

Bonds 2,698 25356 n/a 57

Property 219 1417 nfat 68

Cash/other 97 333 n/at 34

Derwvatives - 254 n/at 57
Fair value of plans assets 3,611 30745
Present valuz of plans’ labiliies {2,681) (33667)
Surplus/{deficit} m plans 930 (2922}
IFRIC 14 adjustment (8) -
Surplusf{defiat}) m scheme 922 (2922}

* In accordance wath the 2011 revision of 1AS 19 which applies for financial periods beginning an or after 1 January 2013 the historic expected return on assets assumption s ne longer required
to determme the 2013-14 expense

Included withim the pension assets are £1 5 biflion (2012 £12 Gbrlion} of HM Government bonds
There 15 no element of the present value of Plans liabilities above that anises from plans that are wholly unfunded

The RMPP Trustee has elected to use interest rate and inflation rate swaps (“derivatives™) to deliver the mvestment strategy whilst managing risk
as described below These derivatives are recorded at market value within the table above and are commonly used by pension funds The interest
rate and inflation rate swaps are used to hedge the exposure to movements in interest rates and inflation (which are key long-term assumptions
used to estimate future pension liabilities) The economic exposure of these swaps held in a specific managed portfolio for this purpose as at 31
March 2013 15 £1 6bn {March 2012 £10 7bn)

The investment strategy of the RMPP Trustee aimns to safeguard the assets of the Plan and to provide together with contributions the fmancial
resource from which benefits are paid Investment is inevitably exposed to nisks The mvestment risks imherent in the mvestment markets are
partially mittgated by pursuing a widely diversified approach across asset dasses and investment managers The Plan uses derwvatives (such as
swaps and futures) to reduce risks whilst maintaining expected ivestment returns The Plan Trustee recogruses that there 1s a natural conflict
between mmproving the potental for positive return and Umiting the potential for poor return The Trustee has specified objectives for the
investment policy that balance these requirements
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c) Movement in plans’ assets, liabiit:es and deficit - RMPP and RMSEPP
1AS 19 requires a reconciliation of opening to closing assets and liabtities

Changes in the fair value of the plans assets are analysed as follows

2013 2012
£m £m
Plans assets at begmning of pertod 30,745 27 685
Increase mn value of pension assets 26-31 March 20128 242 -
Transfer of pension assets to HM Government® (28,438) -
Company contnbutions paid 462 455
Employee contributions pad 144 144
Movement n Company contrisutions accrued {2} {8)
Finance income (expected rate of return) 175 1775
Actuarial gains* 303 1869
Benefits paid te members {20) (1175}
Plans assets at end of period 3,611 30745
Changes m the present value of the defined benefit pension obligations are analysed as follows
2013 2012
£m £m
Plans liabiliies at begimning of period (33,667) (32188)
Inerease in value of pension hatilities 26-31 March 20123 (701) -
Transfer of pension liabilities to HM Government® 32,450 -
Current service cost (436) {407}
Employee contnbutions (144) (144)
Curtalment costs® (20) (31)
Finance cost (138) (1749
Actuanal losses® (45) (325)
Benefits pard 20 1175
Plans latilities at end of perod (2,681} (33 667)

® Taken drrectly ta equrty

% The curtadment costs in the Income statement are recognised on a consistent basis with the assotiated compensation costs. Estimates of both are mduded, for example m any redundancy
provisions rarsed. The curtaiment costs above Tepresent the costs associated with those people pard compensation m respect of redundancy durmg the accounting period Such payments may
occur m an accounting period subsequent te the recogniion of tosts m the m¢ome statement,

d) History of experience gams and losses - RMPP and RMSEPP
The cumutative armount of actuanal gams and losses recogmsed smce transition 1o IFRSs at 29 March 2004 n the statement of comprehensive
income 15 a £261m gam (2012 £462m gam)

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

£m £m £m £m £m

Fair value of assets 3,611 30745 27 685 25814 20071
Present value of labiities (2,681) (33 667) {32 186) (33 855) (26 847)
Defict i plans 930 (2922) {4 501} (8041) (6776)
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

£m £m £m £m £m

Expenence adjustment an assets 545 1869 470 4469 (5 481)
Experience adjustment on liabilities 81 {5} (8) 673 10y

This disclosure 1s m accordance wath [AS 19
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e) Recogmsed charges - RMPP and RMSEPP
A disaggregation of the amounts recognised in the income statement and statement of comprehensive income and directly 1n equity 15 as follows

2013 2012
£m £m

Analysis of amounts recogrused i the income statement
Analysis of amounts charged to operating profit before exceptional items
— Current service cost 436 407
Total charge to operating profit before exceptional items 436 407
Analysis of amounts charged to operating exceptional items
~ Loss due to curtailments (withm prowssion for restructuring charge - note 6) 13 15
Total charge to operating profit 449 422
Analysis of amounts charged/{credited) to financing
- Interest on plans liabilities 138 1749
— Expected return on plans assets (17%) (1775)
Total net (credit)/charge to financing (37) (26)
Net charge to income statement before deduction for tax 412 396
Analysis of amounts recogmised m the statement of comprehensive income
- Actual return on plans assets 720 3644
- Less expected return on plans assets (175) (1775)
Actuartal gamms on assets (all experience adjustments) §45 1869
— Expemence adjustments on liabilities 81 (s}
— Effects of changes in actuaral assumption on habilites (827) (320
Actuarial losses on liabtlities (746) {325)
Total actuarial {losses)/gams recogmsed in the Statement of comprehensive income before deduction
for tax (201) 1544
Analysis of amounts recognised directly in equity
Transfer of pension assets to HM Government (28,438) -
Transfer of pension babilies to HM Government 32,450 -
Pension defiot transfer to HM Government on 1 April 2012 recognised in Statement of changes
equity 4,012 -
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements {continued)

25 Issued share capital and reserves

Authonsed share capstal

2013 2012

£ £

Ordinary shares of £1 each 100,000 100000

Spewial Rights Redeemable Preference Share (Special Share) of £1 each 1 1

Total 100,001 100 001
Issued and called up share capital

2013 2012

£ £

Ordinary shares of £1 each 50,005 50005

Special Rights Redeemable Preference Share (Special Share) of £1 each 1 1

Total 50,006 50006

The Special Share can be redeemed at any ume by s holder {the Secretary of State for Busmess Innovation and Skills) subject to such
redemption bemg compliant with the Companies Act 2006 The Company cannot redeem the Special Share without the prior consent of its holder
No premium 15 payable on redemption

On distnbution n a winding up of the Cormnpany the holder of the Special Share s entitled to repayment of the capital pad up on the Special
Share in prionty to any repayment of capital to any other member The Special Share does not carTy any rights ta vote

Under section 63(7) of the Postal Services Act 2000 for the purposes of the Companies Act 2006 certamn shares i1ssued shall be treated as if their
norminal vatue had been fully paid up

Under sections 72 and 74 of the Postal Services Act 2000 the Secretary of State for Business Innovation and Skills may 1ssue directions to the
Company which depending on the direction issued could result in the recognition of a distribution

Reserves identified in the consolidated statement of changes in equity

Financial Assets Reserve

The Finanoal Assets Reserve is used to record far value changes on avadable for sale financial assets Following the sale of the pension escrow
investments in November 2022 £166m has been transferred to the profit and loss account being the release of the cumulative net gains of
£219m deferred into reserves less the cumulative net taxation of £53m taken directly to reserves relating to these mvestments in prior years

Foreign Currency Translation Reserve
The Foreign Currency Translation Reserve 1s used to record the gains and losses arsing from 29 March 2004 on translation of assets and
liabilities of subsidiaries denominated o currencies other than the reporting currency

Hedging Reserve
The Hedging Reserve is used to record gains and losses arising from cash flow hedges since 28 March 2005

Escrow Reserve

Follawing the Pension Solution on 1 April 2012 (note 24 of the Group financial statements) the Company was directed by HM Government to
credit to a separate reserve (Escrow Reserve) from retained earnings an amount equal {o the value of the pension escrow mvestments on that
date together with further income on the mvestments

Other Reserves

Other Reserves of £2m (2012 £47m) comprise £2m (2012 £2m) relating to First Rate Exchange Services Holdings Limited a jomt venture entity
and £nil (2012 £45m) recognised on the formation of Midasgrange Limited an associate company The transaction to establish Midasgrange
Limited mvolved the Bank of Ireland investtng £100m n exchange for a 50% shareholding Midasgrange Limited was an associate of the Group
until September 2012 when the investment was disposed of
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26 Commutments

Operating lease commitments
The Group 15 committed to the following future mirumum (ease payments under non-cancellable operating leases as at 31 March 2013 and 25
March 2012

Land and buddings Vehictes and equepment IT equrpment Total
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Within one year 141 148 13 11 23 29 177 188
Between one and five years 433 458 14 18 17 16 464 492
Beyond five years 545 578 - - - 3 545 581
Total 1,119 1184 27 29 40 48 1,186 1261

Existmg leases for UK land and buildings have an average term of 13 years and lease renewals tend to have a 10-year term with a break in year
five Existing land and buildings leased overseas by the GLS subsidiary have an average lease term of eight years Vehicle leases generally have a
term of between one and seven years depending on the asset class with the average term being two years - the exssting leases have an average
term remaining of two years The IT commitments relate to 10-year contracts with an average term remaming of four years

Finance lease commitments

2013 2012
Present value Present value
Minimum of minfmum Mirnmum of mirimurm
lease payments lease payments lease payments lease payments
£m £m £m £m
Within one year %0 82 102 90
Between one and five years 212 199 220 200
Beyond five years 122 31 131 a7
Total mintmum lease payments 424 312 453 327
Less amounts representing finance charges (112) - (126) -
Present value of minimum lease payments 312 312 327 327

The Group has finance lease contracts for vehicles land and buildings and plant and equipment The leases have no terms of renewal purchase
options or escalation clauses and there are no restrictions concerming dividends barrgwings or additional leases Vehicle leases have a term of
between 1 and 7 years depending on the dass of vehicle with the average term being 4 years Property leases have a term of batween 1 and
106 years with the average term being 41 years The term of the plant and equipment leases range from 5 to 8 years with the average heing 5
years

Capital commitments
The Group has commitments of £90m at 25 March 2012 {25 March 2012 £97m} which are contracted for but not prowided far in the financiat
staternents
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27 Related party information

Related party transactions

During the year the Group entered into transactions with related parties The transactwns were in the erdmary course of business and included
administration and mvestment services recharged to the Group s pension plan by the Group s Royal Mail Pension Trustees Limsted subsidiary The
matenal transactions entered into and the balances outstanding at the financial year end were as follows

Amounts Amounts

Purchases/ owed from refated  owed to related

Counter- Sales/recharges recharges from party Including party mcludimg
party to related party related party gutstanding loans  outstanding loans
husiness 2013 2012 2013 2012 203 2012 2013 2012
segment £m £m £m £m £m £m £m fm
Royal Mail Pension Plan (RMPP) Other 2 9 - - - - - -
Quadrant Catenng Limited UKPIL - - 26 35 - - 3 3
63 Worldwide Mall NV [Spring) UKPIL - - 6 6 3 4 - -
Midasgrange Limited Post Office Limited 35 41 1 1 - 12 - 1
First Rate Exchange Services Holdings Limited Post Office Limited 27 31 125 128 7 5 11 8

With the exception of the Royal Mail Pension Plan the compan:es listed above are either a joint venture or assocate of the Group

The sales to and purchases from related parties are made at normal market prices Balances outstanding at the year end are unsecured Interest
free and settlement 15 macde by cash

The Group trades with numerous HM Government bodies on an arm s length basis Transactions with these entities are not disclosed owing to the
significant volume of transactions that are conducted

Key management compensation

2013 2012

£000 £000

Short-term employee benefits 4,883 3920
Post-employment benefits 31 183
Other long-term benefits 218 -
Total compensation eamed by key management 5,132 4103

Key management compnses executive and non-executive Directors of Royal Mad Group Lirnited and Post Cffice Limited
HM Government s the Company s sole shargholder and accordingly the Cirectors have no interest in the shares of the Comnpany

The ultimate parent {the Company) and principal subsidiartes
Royal Mail Holdings plc 1s the ultimate parent company of the Group The consolidated financial statements include the finanoal results of Royal
Mait Holdings plc and the pnncipal subsidianies listed below

% eguity % equity

interest interest
Company Princrpal actrvities Country of incorporatien 2013 2012
Royal Mail Group Limited (*) Mails and parcels services Untted Xmgdom 100 100
Post Office Limited (*} Counter retal and financsal services United Kingdom 100 100
Royal Mail Investments Limited Holding company United Kingdom 100 100
General Logistics Systems BV Parcel services Netherlands 100 100
Royal Mail Estates Limited Property holdings United Kingdom ico 100
Romec Limited Faclities management United Kingdom 51 51

(*} Direct subshary of Royal Mail Holdmgs ple

Jont venture
The Groups 50% nterest in First Rate Exchange Services Holdings Limited a company incorporated in the United Kingdom 15 hield by Post Office
Limited The company s principal activity s the prowision of Bureau de Change services
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27 Related party information (continued)

Assoriates
The fatlowing companies were the principal associates of the Group at the balance sheet date

1 %

ownership ownership

Lompany Principal activities Country of in{arporation 2013 2012
Quadrant Catering Limited Catening services United Kingdom 51 51
63 Wertdwide Mail NV {Spring} Mail services Netherlands 32 45 3245
Midasgrange Limited Financial services United Kingdem - 50

The majonty of Board membership and vottng power in Quadrant Catermg Limited ts held by the Groups business partner hence it 15 not
a subsidiary

The investment in Quadrant Catering Limited 1s held by Royal Mail Group Limited the investment m G3 Worldwide Mail NV (Sprmg) was held by
Reyal Mail Investments Limited up until its disposal on 2 April 2013 and the investment in Midasgrange Limited was held by Post Office Lirmited
Midasgrange bimited was an asscciate of the Group untl September 2012

28 Events after the Balance Sheet Date
In accordance with the funding agreement with Government announced on 27 October 2010 for whech State Aud approval was receved on 28
March 2012 Post Office Lirnited receved £415m of funding on 2 April 2013

On 21 June 2013 Royal Maill Group and Post Cffice Lirmited launched a consultation with members of the Royal Mall Pension Plan on a proposal

to change the terms of the Plan The consultation will conclude on 25 August 2013 followng which both Companies will consider the feedback
receved before making therr final decision and then communicate the outcome to colleagues shortly afterwards
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Parent Company financial statements 2012-2013

The majonty of the Annual Report and Financial Statements relates to the Royal Mail Holdings plc Group consclidated accounts which comprise
the aggregatron of all the Groups trading entities (subsidiaries jont venture and associated undertakings) This mandatory section reperts the
indivigual balance sheet and notes of the ultimate holding company Royal Masl Holdings plc {the Campany)

The Company has elected to prepare its own financial statements for the financial year ended 31 March 2013 in accordance with United Kingdom
Accounting Standards mcluding Financizl Reporting Standard 102 The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland
(FRS 102} which was approved for ssue by the Financial Reporting Council en 5 March 2013 (see note 13 for transition disclosures)

Parent Company Balance Sheet
at 31 March 2013 and 25 March 2012

2013 2012
Notes £m Em

Fixed assets
Investments n subsidiaries 5 - -
Investments m pension escrow 6 - 1234
Total fixed assets - 1234
Current assets
Investments 7 1256 -
Net current assets 1,256 -
Net assets 1,256 1234
Capital and reserves
Share capttal 10 - -
Share premwum 11 430 430
Reserves 11 1256 144
Profit and toss account 11 (430} 660
Shareholder's funds 1,256 1234

The financial statements on pages 60 to 64 were approved by the Beard of Directors on 1'{ S‘.L\'lo\'s and stgned on its behalf by

Ao

Donald Brydon
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Notes to the Parent Company financial statements
1 Fimanaal year and statement of compliance

The financial year ends on the last Sunday 1n March and accordingly these finanaal statements are made up to the year ended 31 March 2013
{2012 year ended 25 March}

The financial statements of the parent Company Royal Mail Heldings plc (the Company) were authorised for issue by the Board on 24 July 2013

The Company s financial statements have been prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Accounting Standards including Financial Reperting
Standard 102 The Financial Reperting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland) which was approved for issue by the Financial
Reporting Council on 5 March 2013

2 Accounting policies

Basis of preparatron

This 1s the first year m which the Company has prepared its financial statements under FRS 102 and the comparatives and accounting policies
have heen restated from previous United Kimgdom Generally Accepted Accounting Prinaples {UK GAAP) to comply with the requirements of FRS
102 The transition to FRS 102 from the previously published UK GAAP financial statements 1s set out in note 13

The financial statements on pages 40 to 64 have heen prepared in accordance with applicable UK accounting standards and law ncluding the
requirements of the Companies Act 2004 Unless otherwise stated in the accounting policies below the fimancal statements have been prepared
under the historic cost accounting convention

Going concern

In making an assessment on the Company s ahility to continue as a going concern the Directors have considered the respective geing concern
assessments made by the Directors of the Royal Mall Group Limited and Past Office Limited subsidiary companies (see note 2 i the Group
financial statements) In reviewing these assessments the Directors have taken into account all avattable informat:on about the future which is at
least but not imited te twetve months from the date when the financial statements are authonised for 1ssue They have also taken account of the
fact that the Company acts as quaranter for the Royal Mall Group Limited £300m senior debt facility and £500m other loans facility (see notes 18
and 21 of the Group financial statements for further details) and that the escrow reserve and the assets backing the reserve (£1 256m as at 31
March 2013) cannot be used without the agreerent of HM Government After careful consideration of all available information the Directors are
of the view that it 15 appropriate that these finanoal statements have been prepared on a going concern basis

Profit and Loss Account
The Company has not presented its own Profit and Loss Account  as permitted by section 408 of the Caompanies Act 2006 However the results
of the Company for the year are disclosed m note 8 and 11 to the Parent Company financial statements

Statement of Cash Flows
The Company has not presented its own Statement of Cash Flows as permitted by section 1 12(b} of FRS 102

Fmanaal mstruments
In accordance with section 11 2(b) of FRS 102 the Company has elected to apply the recognition and measurement provisions of 1AS 39 Finanaal
Instrements Recognition and Measurement {as adopted for use in the EU} to account for its financial instruments

The Company has applied the exemption avalable in section 1 12{c) of FRS 102 The Company has nat disclesed all imformation required by 1AS
39 as the Groups consolidated fimanoal statements in which the Company 15 included prowide equivalent disclosures for the Group as required
under Section 11 Basic Finanoal Instruments and Section 12 Other Financial Instruments fssues of FRS 102

Investments m subsidianes
Investments in subsidiaries within the Company s financial statements are stated at cost less any accurnulated impairment

Impairment reviews

Unless atherwise disclosed in these accountmg policies fixed assets are reviewed for smpairment m accordance with section 27 /mparrment of
Assets of FRS 102 if events or changes m crcumstances indicate that the carmyang value may be impaired The Company assesses at each
reporting date whether such indications exist Where appropnate an imparrment lass 15 recognised in the Income Statement for the amount by
which the camymng value of the asset (or cash generating unit) exceeds its recoverable amount which 15 the higher of an assets far value less
costs to sell and its value in use
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Notes to the Parent Company financial statements (continued)
2 Accountmg policies {continued)

Investments In pension escrow

nvestments i pension escrow are financial assets within the scope of 1AS 39 Amancal Instruments Recogmition and Measurement. The
investments are a combination of short-term deposits and long-term investments which mature between 1 day and 44 years but have been
mcluded within fixed assets as the investments provided secunty to the Royal Mail Pension Plan Trustee in support of the 38 year deficit recovery
n 2009 as part of the last formal tnenmial valuation

The investments comprise bank balances Treasury bills and gdt edged secunities

Treasury bils index-lmked gilt edged securnities and conventional gilt edged secunties are classified as availlable for sate financial mstruments on
the basis that they are quoted investments that are not held for trading and may be disposed of prior to maturty The investments are initally
recognised at far value bemg the purchase price After imitial recognition interest 1s induded in the reported profit/{toss) for the year using the
effective interest rate method and the assets are measured at fair value with gans or losses being recognised m the Financial Assets Reserve until
the investment 1s derecogrused

Contingent habilittes
In accordance with section 21 Provisions and Centingencies of FRS 102 contingent labilities are not disclosed if the possibility of any outflow of
resources occurting Is considered to be remote

3 Directors’ emoluments

The Directors of the Cornpany are not paid fees by the Company for their services as Directors of the Company The Directors of the Company are
paid fees by other cornpanies of the Group

4 Auditor’s remuneration
The fees for the audit of the Company are £25000 (2012 €nil) There are no other fees payable to the auditor for services to the Company

5 Investments in subsidiaries

Cost tmpairment 2013 2012
Em £m £m £m

At 31 March 2013 and 25 March 2012 - - - -

On 1 April 2012 Royal Mail Group Limited transferred ownership of the entire i1ssued ordinary share capital of Post Office Limited to the Company
at £nil value and for ne consideration

Details of the Company s substdiaries are set out 1 note 27 of the Group financal statements
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& Investments in pension escrow

2013 2012
Average Average
effective effectve
rate 2013 rate 2012
% £m % £m
Cash at bank - - 04 1
Treasusy bills - - 04 257
Gilt edged secunties (index {inked} - - 43 835
Gilt edged secunties (conventional) - - 48 141
Total - 1234
The pension escrow investments are discussed further in the Group financial statements (note 13)
7 Current asset investments
2013 2012
£m £m
Short-term deposuts - Government/local government 1,256 -
Total 1,256 -

8 Profit and Loss Account

The Company Is a non-trading company The profit for the penod relates to mcome from the investments in pension escrow of £221m (2012

£41m) and a tax charge of £55m (2012 £31m credit)

9 Taxation

A current tax charge in respect of prior periods of £53m has also been recognised Following the sale of the pensian escrow Investments in
Nevemnber 2012 the cumulative net gams of £197m deferred into reserves for accounting purposes were released to the profit and loss account
The assocated current tax charge of £53m in respect of the gains was similarly released to the profit and [oss account and recorded within the

current tax charge for the period

10 Share capstal

Details of the share capital are disclesed in the Group financial statements (note 25)

11 Sharehalder's funds

Profit and Financial

Shars Share loss Escrow Assets 2013 2012

capital premium account Reserve Reserve Total Totat

£m £m £m £m £m £m £m

At 26 March 2012 and 28 March 2011 - 430 660 - 144 1,234 1074
Profit/(loss} for the year - - 166 - - 166 72
(Losses) / Gans on fimancial asset investments - - - - (197) {197) 119
Taxation an items taken directly to reserves - - - - - - (31)
Transfer of cumulative taxation to Profit and Loss Account - - - - 53 53 -
Transfer to Escrow reserve - - {1,256) 1,256 - - -
At 31 March 2013 and 25 March 2012 - 430 (430) 1,256 - 1,256 1234

Financial Assets Reserve

The Finanoal Assets Reserve i1s used to record fair value changes on available for sale financial assets Following the sale of the pension escrow
mvestrments in November 2012 the cumulative net gams of £197m deferred into reserves were released to the profit and loss account and
cumtlative net taxation of £53m taken directly to reserves relating to these investments in prior year was transferred to the profit and loss
account.
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11 Shareholder's funds {continued)

Escrow Reserve

Following the Pension Solution on 1 Aprd 2012 [note 24 of the Group financial statements) the Company was directed by HM Government to
credit to a separate reserve (Escrow Reserve) from retamed earnings an amount egual to the value of the pension escrow mvestments on that
date together with any further income on the investments

12 Charges
Details of charges registered over the assets of the Company are contamed m the Group financial statements (notes 18 and 21)

13 Transition to FRS 102

The Company financial year ends on the last Sunday m March In previous years the finanoal statements have been prepared under UK Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles (UK GAAP) Fram this accountng year the Company has elected to produce its Company financial statements n
accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 102 The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Iretand (FRS 102}
which was approved for issue by the Financial Reporting Councd on 5 March 2013

This note explaims how the Companys previous teported financal performance and position are reported under FRS 102 As a result of the
accounting policies adopted under FRS 102 there is no difference with the previously reported financial position at the date of transition on 28
March 2011 or with the financiat position at or profit reported for the year ended 25 March 2012 Therefore there are no reconciling items to
present under section 35 13 of FRS 102

Basis of preparation '

The restated financial staternents of the Company have been prepared in accordance with FRS 102 and use the historic cost convention with the
exception of certam finanaal instruments (pension escrow mvestments) that are measured at far value

The rules for the first time adoption of FRS 102 are set out in Sectior 35 of FRS 102 This requires an entity to comply with all the requirements
of FRS 102 at the reporting date for s first set of FRS 102 financial statements As a general principle FRS 102 requires the standards effective
at the reporting date to be applied retrospectively However retrospective application 1s prohibted in some areas In addition a number of bmited
opbional exemnptions from full retrospective application of FRS 102 are granted Where applicable the options selected by the directors are set out
m the notes to the accounts and below

The following comments refer to the differences m accounting policies and presentation of financial information under FRS 102

Investments in subsidiaries

In adepting FRS 102 the Company has adopted the transitional exemption m Section 35 10(f} i relation to its investments in subsidianes to
measure this at deemed cost {the carrying amount as determined under prior GAAP at the date of transition) Therefore the mvestment i its
subsidianes 15 stated on the date of transition on 28 March 2011 at £nil

Financial Instruments

In adopting FRS 102 the Company has elected to apply the recognition and measurement provisions of IAS 39 Financial Instruments Recegnition

and Measurement (as adopted for use in the EU) to account for its financial mstruments Transitioning from FRS 26 to 145 39 has resulted in na
recencling items to present
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Statement of Directors’ responsibilities in respect of the Parent Company financiat statements
The Directors are responsible for prepanng the Directors Report and the financial statements i accordance with applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year Under that law the Directors have elected to prepare
the financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Pracuce {United Kingdom Accounting Standards
including Financial Reporting Standard 102 The Financial Reportimg Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland) and applicable law
Under company law the Directors must not approve the financial staternents unless they are satisfied that they give a true and far view of the
state of affairs of the company and of the profit or loss of the company for that period In preparing these financal statements the Directors are
required to

»  select suitable accounting polices and then apply them consistently

¢ make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent

e state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed subject to any matenal departures disclosed and explamed in
the financial statements and

. prepare the financial staternents on the going concem basis unless it 15 inappropnate to presume that the Company will continue i
business

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate actounting records that are sufficient to show and explan the Company s transactions and
disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements

comply with the Companies Act 2006 They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence for taking reasonable
steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other wreqularities

N g i,

Donaid Brydon

Date 'Z_Llh -S-'.L\ o1y
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the members of Royal Mail Holdings plc

We have audited the parent Company financial statements of Royal Mail Holdings ple for the year ended 31 March 2013 which comprise the
balance sheet and the related notes 1 to 13 The financial reporting framework that has been applied in ther preparation is applicable law and
United Kingdorn Accounting Standards {United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accountng Practice including Finanaial Reporting Standard 102 The
Financial Reportng Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland }

This report 1s made solely to the Company s members as a body m accorgdance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 Our audit
work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company s members those matters we are required to state to them m an auditors
report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the
Company and the Company s members as a body for our audit work for this report or for the opmicns we have formed

Respective respansibilities of Directors and auditors

As explained more fully in the Directors responsthilitres statement set out on page 65 the Directors are responsible for the preparation of the
parent Company financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view Our responstbility 15 to audit and express an
opimion on the parent Company financial statements in accordance with applicable law and Intemational Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland}
Thase standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board s Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaming evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance that
the financial statements are free frem matenal misstatement whether caused by fraud or error This includes an assessment of whether the
accounting pelicies are appropriate to the parent Company s circumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the Directors and the overall presentation of the financial statements In addition we
read all the financial and non-financial information m the Annual Report and Fmaneial Statements to identify matenal nconsistencies with the
audited financial statements If we becorne aware of any apparent material misstatements or inconsistenoes we consider the implications for our
report

Opinion on financial statements
In our apmion the parent Company financial statements

» give a true and fair view of the state of the Carmpany s affars as at 31 March 2013

» have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice including Fimancial Reperting
Standard 102 The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of ireland and

« have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
tn our the information given in the Directors Report for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared 15 consistent with the
parent Company financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you if n our opmion
» adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent Company or returmns adequate for our audit have not been recewved from
branches not visited by us or
« the parent Company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns or
» certain disclosures of Directors rernuneration specified by law are not made or
= we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit

Other matter
We have reported separately on the Group financial statements of Reyal Mail Holdings pic for the year ended 31 March 2013

Fo & Vo, cct

Richard Wilson {Sentor statutory auditor)
for and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP,
Statutory Audsitor

Londen

AN G‘ulﬁ 2013
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